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FILE NO. 82-34744

Form 52-109FT2 - Certification of Interim Filings during Transition Period

I, Nancy C. Southern, President and Chief Executive Officer, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument
52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim Filings) of
Canadian Utilities Limited (the issuer) for the period ending September 30,
2005;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of
a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is
necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under
which it was made, with respect to the period covered by the interim filings; and

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as
of the date and for the periods presented in the interim filings.

Date: October 24, 2005

[Original signed by N.C. Southern]
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Form 52-109FT2 - Certification of Interim Filings during Transition Period

I, Karen M. Watson, Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument
52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim Filings) of
Canadian Utilities Limited (the issuer) for the period ending September 30,
2005;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of
a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is
necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under
which it was made, with respect to the period covered by the interim filings; and

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other
financial information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as
of the date and for the periods presented in the interim filings.

Date: October 24, 2005

[Original signed by K.M. Watson]




LU St INTERIM REPORT

Corporate Head Office: 1400, 908 - 11th Ave S.W., Calgary, AB, Canada T2R 1N6 Tel (403) 292-7500 Fax (403) 292-7623 www.canadian-utilities.com

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED FILE NO. 82-34744
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

TO THE SHARE OWNERS:

Canadian Utilities Limited reported a 6% increase in earnings for the three months ended
September 30, 2005, compared to the same period in 2004.

Third quarter eamnings were $46.5 million ($0.37 per share) compared to $44.0 million ($0.35 per share) for
the same pertod in 2004. Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, were $176.5 million ($1.39
per share) compared to $163.6 million ($1.29 per share) for the same period in 2004, excluding the $55.1
million gain from the retail sale by ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric of their energy supply businesses to Direct
Energy.

Financial Summary For the Three Months For the Nine Months
Ended September 30 Ended September 30
2005 2004 2005 2004
($ Millions except per share data)
(unaudited)
Eamings ......cccoovoviiiiioiiii e 46.5 440 176.5 218.7
Eamings excluding the retail sale gain .................ccoocoeeeen. 46.5 44.0 176.5 163.6
Eamnings per Class A and B share’ ............c..ccocoocomcvinnin.n.. 0.37 0.35 1.39 1.73
Eamings per Class A and B share excluding retail sale gain' 0.37 0.35 1.39 1.29
REVENUES ...\t scena e s s 5374 530.5 1,835.5 23744
Cash flow from operations ...........cc.ccocccoveieeveecriiiece e 1359 128.4 471.5 373.9

1. Per share numbers have been retroactively restated to reflect two-for-one share split
Earnings for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased primarily due to:

e the impact of the previously announced ATCO Power TXU Europe settlement and improved
performance in Alberta generating plants; and

e interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas approved by the Alberta Energy and
Utilities Board (AEUB) for 2005.

This increase was partially offset by lower volumes and higher shrinkage costs for natural gas liquids in
ATCO Midstream.

Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, excluding the retail sale gain, increased primarily
due to:

o the impact of the ATCO Power TXU Europe settlement;
e higher eamings in ATCO Midstream; and
e increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.

This increase was partially offset by ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s higher depreciation and financing costs
related to rate base additions in late 2004 and to date in 2005 and increased operating costs.



Revenues for the three months ended Septzrabai- 30, 2005 ir.crsased primarily due to:

e improved performance in ATCG Tower’s UK. opeiations aac the impact of the TXU Europe
settlement;’

e interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas; and
higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold
in ATCO Midstream.

This increase was partiaily offset by lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids
extraction in ATCO Midstream.

Revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 decreased primarily due to Direct Energy
assuming responsibility for selling natural gas and electricity to customers since the completion of the retail
sale in the second quarter of 2004.

Cash flow from operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005 increased primarily
due to increased earnings and the impact of the TXU Europe settlement in ATCO Power.

Third Quarter Other Highlights include:

e In July 2005, the Corporation’s board of directors approved a two-for-one share split of the outstanding
Class A and Class B shares. The share split took the form of a stock dividend whereby share owners
received one additional Class A share for each Class A share held as of the record date and one
additional Class B share for each Class B share held as of the record date.

e In September 2005, ATCO Power achieved financial cempletion under the terms of the proleut
financing agreement for the 580-megawatt Brighton Beach Power Plant.

e On August 2, 2005, ATCO Power received the second distribution relating to the TXU Europe
settlement. To date, the Corporation has received approximately $83.1 million of the total expected
proceeds to the Corporation of approximately $104 million.

e ATCO Travel was awarded a five-year contract to manage Suncor Energy’s business travel program.

Canadian Utilities Limited is a part of the ATCO Group of companies. ATCO Group is an Alberta tased,
worldvwide organization of companies with more than 7,000 employees actively engaged in Power Generation,
Utilities and Global Enterprises. More information aboui Canadian Utilities can be found on its website,
www.canadian-utilities.com.

For further information contact:

N.C. Southem R.D. Southem
President & Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Board




-CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“M])&A”)

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations of Canadian Utililies Limited
(the “Corporation”) should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s unaudited interim financial statements for
the nine months ended September 30, 2005, and the audited financial statements and management’s discussion and
analysis of financial condition and results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 ¢ 2004 MD&A”)
Information contained in the 2004 MD&A that is not discussed in this document remains substantially unchariged.
Additional information relating to the Corporatxon, including the Corporation’s Annual Informaﬂon Form, is
available on SEDAR at www.sedar. com. -

The common share capital of the Corporaﬂon consists of Class A non-voting shares (“Class A shares”) and Class B
common shares (“Class B shares™).
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements contained in this MD&A constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are
often, but not always, identified by the use of words such as “anticipate”, “plan”, “estimate”, “expect”, “may”,
“will”, “intend”, “should”, and similar expressions. These statements 1nvolve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in
such forward-looking statements. The Corporation believes that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking
statements are reasonable, but no assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct and such
forward-looking statements should not be unduly relied upon.

In particular, this MD&A contains forward-looking statements pertaining to the impact of changes in government
regulation and non-regulated generating capacity subject to long term contracts. The Corporation’s actual results
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coud differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-leoking staterrents as a result of regulatory decisions,
competitive factors in the industries in which the Corporation operates, prevailing economwiic conditions, and othes
factors, many of which are beyond the control of the Corporation.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation’s financial statements are consolidated from three Business Groups: Utilities, Power Generation
and Globa! Enterprises. For the purposes of financial disclosure, corporate transactions are accounted for as
Corporate and Other (refer to Note 8 to the unaudited iatedm financial statements for the nine months ended
September 30, 2005). Transactions betweer: Business Groups are eliminated in all reporting of the Corporation’s
consolidated financial information.

TWO FOR ONE SHARE SPLIT

In July 2005, the Corporation’s board of directors approved a two-for-one share split of the outstanding Class A and
Class B shares. The chare split took the form of a stock dividend whereby share owners received one additional
Class A share for each Class A share beld as of the record date and one additional Class B share for each Class B
share held as of the record date. The stock dividend was paid on September 15, 2005 to share owners of record at
the close of business on August 29, 2005. All share, stock option and per share amounts have been retroactively
restated to reflect this share split.

TRANSFER OF THE RETAIL ENERGY SUPPLY BUSINESSES

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Erevgy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML”), a subsidiary of Centrica plc (“Transfer of the
Retail Energy Supply Businesses™). Proceeds of the transfer were $90 sllion, of which $45 million was paid at
closing, and the remainder was paid on May 4, 2005. Net proceeds, afier adiustments related to legal, transition and
other deferred costs pertaining to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, resulted ia a gain of $63.3
million before income taxes of $8.2 million, and increased eamings by $55.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2004.

Tie Corporation’s revenues and natural gas supply and purchased power costs after May 4, 2004, were reduced
accordingly for 2004 and thereafter. Subsequent to May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas continued o purchase natural gas on
behali of DEML until the transfer of the relevant ATCO (Gas uatural gas purchase contracts to DEML was
completed in September 2004. There will be no ongoing impact on earnings resuiting from the transfer of these
businesses as natural gas and electricity have historically been sold to customers on a “no-margin” basis. ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric continue to own and operate the natural gas and electricity distzibution systems used to
deliver erergy.

TXU EUROPE SETTLEMENT

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited (“TXU Europe™) which had a long term “off take” agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by
the 1,000 megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking Power
Limited {*Barking Power™), has & 25.5% equity interest. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of
contract related to TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating
plant. Following negotiations with the administrators, an agreement has now been reached with respect to Barking
Power’s claim. On March 30, 2005, the Corporation announced that Barking Power will receive £179.3 million
(approximately $410 million) in settlement of its claim, of which the Corporation’s share is approximately $104
million. Barking Power received a first distribution of £112.3 million (approximately $257 million) on March 30,
2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $65.4 million. Income taxes of approximately $17.7 million relating to
this distribution have been paid. A second distribution of £32.2 million (approximately $69.6 million) was received
on August 2, 2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $17.7 million. Income taxes of approximately $5.3 million
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relating to the second distribution will-be paid.as part of the Corporatlon s normal tax mstallments A final
distribution is expected in the first quarict of 2006, . _

Based on the foreign currency exchange rates in effect on March 30, 2005, the Corporation’s share of this settlement
is expected to generate eamings after income taxes of approximately $69 million, which will be recognized over the
remaining term of the TXU contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $11 million per year. These earnings
will be dependent upon the foreign currency exchange rates in effect at the time the earnings are recognized.

The Barking generating plant has continued to supply 725 megawatts of power under long term contracts with other
purchasers. The 275 megawatts of power previously supplied to TXU Europe is currently being sold into the United
Kingdom electricity market on a merchant basis under a one year marketing agreement expiring Scpteisber 36,
2006. The majority of the 275 megawatts has been sold forward under this agreement through the end of March
2006.

SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION

For the Three Months Ended

($ Millions except per share data) : R Mar.31  Jun.30  Sep.30 - Dec. 31
s v ' (unaudited)- o
2005 : ; : Co
REVENUES (1) oottt 745.2 552.9 5374 i,
Eamings attributable to Class A and Class B shares (4) (5) ........ 80.0 50.0 46.5 ...
Earnings per Class A and Class B share (4) (3)....cocooovvveeiennne, 0.63 0.39 037
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share (4) (5)............... 0.63 039 . 037
z004 A K EE.
REVENUES (1) 1.oviviieiieiiis e bt i 1,169.2 6747 .- 35305 637.1
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B sluee (z) @ 5)... 74.5 100.2- 440 90.3
Eamings per Class A and Class B share (2) (4) (5).oovvvvviinnes 0.59 0.79 035 0.71
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share (2) (4) (5)......... 0.59 0.78 0.35 0.71
2003
REVEIUES .....ovvieiiiiice ettt ettt ettt v stb e et sn e stes reeisessesees sveevteareasees  teeeenreeseens 937.9
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares (3) (4) (5)... .ooiiieiies v e 86.3
Earnings per Class A and Class B share (3) (4) (5).cocivvivviniics viivreiiees s e et 0.68
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share (3) (4)‘(5) ......................................................... 0.68
Notes:

(i) Prior to the Tmnsfer of the Rerazl Energy Supplv Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and
electricity purchased for ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for their customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.

(2} Includes earnings of 855.1 million, earnings per share of $0.44 and diluted earnings per share of $0.43 on the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses for the three months ended June 30, 2004.

(3) 2003 earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares have been restated for retroactive changes in the
methods of accounting for asset retirement obligations and stock based compensation.

(4) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

(5) Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the
timing of rate decisions, earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

(6) The above data has been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and
the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.



RESULTS CF OPERATIONS

The principa! faciors that have cansed variations in revenues ‘and earmings over the eight most recently completed
quarters necessazy ) understand generzl trends that have developed and the seasonality of the businesses disclosed
in the 2002 MD&A remain substantially unchanged, except for changes ir market condiiions which have impacted
ATCO Midstream’s earnings from natural gas liquids and storage operations.

Consolidated Operations

Revenues, eamnings aftributable to Class A and Class B shares, and eamnings and diluted earnings per share were as
follows:

¥or the Three For the Nine
Months Ended Months Ended
o Septerzber 30 September 30
($ Millions except per share data) 2005 2004 2005 2004
(unaudited)
ReVENIES (1) ..ottt e e 5374 530.5 1,835.5 2,374.4
Earnings attributable to Class A ard Class B shares (2) (3) (4} ... 46.5 44.0 176.5 218.7
Eamnings per Class A share and Class B-share (2) 3) (4)............... 0.37 0.35 1.39 1.73

Diluted earnings per Class A share and Class B share (2) (3) (4)... 0.37 0.35 1.39 1.72

Notes:

(1) Prior to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and
electricity purchased for ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for their customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.

(2) Includes earnings of 855.1 million, earnings per share of §0.44 and diluted earnings per share of 80.43 on the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses for the nine months ended September 30, 2004.

(3) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

(4) Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the
timing of rate decisions, earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

(3) The above data has been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and
the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar. '

Revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2002, increased by $6.9 muilion to $537.4 mullion, primarily
due to:

e natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no margin” basis and improved merchant pertormance in ATCO
Power’s United Kingdom (“U.K.”) operations and the impact of the TXU Enrope settlement;

e impact of the interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas (refer to Regulatory
Matters — ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas sections);

o higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold,;

e 2004 one time impact of the finalization of natural gas supply costs related to the Transfer of the Retail
Energy Supply Businesses; and

e 2004 one time impact of 2004 General Rate Application adjustments for ATCO Gas related to the refund of
deferred income taxes.

This increase was partially offset by:
e lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas 11qu1ds extraction in ATCO Midstream;
and
¢ lower business activity in ATCO Frontec.




Revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $538.9 million to $1,835.5 million,
primarily due to:
e lower sales of clectricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to-the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004; and -
* lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

This decrease was partially offset by:

e natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no margin” basis and improved merchant performance in ATCO
Power’s UK. operations and the impact of the TXU Europe settlement;

¢ higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold;
increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek; and

e operations at ATCO Power s ‘80 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant commissioned in July 2004,

Earnings attributable to Class A and Clase B shares for the three months ended September 30, 2005, mcreased
by $2.5 million to $46.5 million, primarily due to:

o impact of the TXU Europe settlement;

e improved performance in ATCO Power’s Alberta generating plants;

e interim customer rate increases ‘for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas approved by the AEUB for 20035
recognized in the third quarter which offset higher costs incurred in 2005 in ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric
that are not yet fully reflected in-current customer raies. The majority of these cost increases are for higher
depreciation and financing costs related to rate base additions in late 2004 and to date in 2005, and
increased operating costs. Rate applications were filed in May 2005 requesting the AEUB to incorporate
these higher costs in customer. Iates (Iefer to Regulatoxy Matters - ATCO Electnc and ATCO Gas

- sections); and

e higher storage earnings due to 1ncreased storage capamty sold in ATCO Midstream. The additional storage

capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold.

This increase was partially offset by: ‘
* lower volumes and higher shrinkage costs for natural gas liquids in ATCO Midstream; and
¢  higher maintenance and general and administration costs in Alberta Power (2000) operations.

Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, were $176.5
million ($1.39 per share). Earnings for the corresponding period in 2004 were $163.6 rrulhon ($1.29 per share),
excluding the $55.1 million after-tax gain on the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004.
Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2004, including the impact of the Transfer of the Retail Energy
Supply Businesses, were $218.7 million ($1.73 per share).

Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, excluding
the impact of the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, increased by $12.9 million, primarily due to:

e impact of the TXU Europe settlement and improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s UK.
operations;

o higher storage earnings due to higher fees and increased storage capacity sold in ATCO Midstream. The
additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage
capacity sold, ‘

¢ increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek; and

¢ impact of the AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in deferred
income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section).

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ higher costs incurred in 2005 in ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric that are not yet fully reflected in interim
customer rates. The majority of these cost increases are for higher depreciation and financing costs related
to rate base additions in late 2004 and to date in 2005, and increased operating costs. Rate applications
were filed in May 2005 requesting the AEUB to incorporate these higher costs in customer rates (refer to
Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas sections);



e increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO "_td. Class I Non-Voting share rrices since Decenibec 31, 2004,

+ decrease in ATCO Power’s carnings of $3.0 raillion due io iower spatk spreads realized on electnczty sold
to the Alberta Power Pool; and

e warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

Operating expenses (consisting of natural gas supply, purchased power, operation and maintenance, selling and
administrative and franchise fee costs) for the three months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $5.0 million to
$333.9 million, primarily due to:

¢ lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

This decicaszs was partially offset by:
e higher Tuel costs at ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant due to natural gas fuel purchases recovered on
a “no rrargin” basis; and
e  higher natural gas liquids shrinkage costs in ATCO Midstream due to higher natural gas prices.

Opevzting expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $581.3 million to $1,154.9
millicn, primarily ¢ue to:
o lower «¢osis of electricity ana natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electzic and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004; and
¢ lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas ltiquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.,

This decrease was partially offset by:
. h1gher fuel costs at ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant due to natural gas fuel purchases recovered on
“no margin” basis; and
o .ugher natural gas liquids shrinkage costs it ATCCO Midstieain aue to higher natural gas prices.

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, increased by
$4.4 million to $70.5 million, and by $16.7 million to $227.0 million, respectively, primarily due to:
e capiia additions in 2005 and 2004,

Interest expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $0.6 million to $50.9
million, and oy 57.8 million to $158.6 million, respectively, primarily due to:
¢  iuterest on non-recourse financings for ATCO Power’s Brighton Beach generating plant commissioned in
July 2004; and .
o interest on new financings issued in 2004 to fund capital expenditures in Utilities operations.

Interest and other income for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $0.9 million to $8.3
million, primarily due to:
¢ interesi income on higher cash balances.

Interest and other income for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $5.6 million to $26.0
million, primarily due to:
e interest income on higher cash balances; and
e the recovery of ATCO Electric’s carrying costs and interest associated with the AEUB decision adjusting
the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in deferred income taxes (refer to Regulatory Matters
—~ ATCO Electric section).

Income taxes for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $5.3 million to $34.9 million, primarily
due to:

e favorable one-time tax adjustment in 2004 for ATCO Gas resulting from a change in income tax
methodology as directed by the AEUB in its decision respecting ATCO Gas® 2003/2004 General Rate
Application; and '

¢  higher earnings.

Income taxes for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, including the $8.2 million of income taxes resulting
from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004, increased by $2.4 million to $117.6 million.
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Income taxes for the nine months ended Sei)tembé‘rt36; ‘20(.)5, exclm‘ding the $8.2 million of incorhe taxes resulting
from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, increased by $10.6 million to $117.6 million, primarily
e t.O. higher earnings.

Segmented Information

Segmented revenues for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, were as follows:

For the Three For the Nine

Months Ended Months Ended

- September 30 September 30

($ Millions) 2005 2004 2008 2004
(unaudited)

UHHHES (1)t ettt 221.8 1942 890.4 1,491.9
POWET GENETALIOI ....evvvvie vt er ettt et ereesr b see e e 188.7 156.1 583.5 469.3
Global Enterprises ..........c.occoevveeeveennenenn R e e 160.7 2103 485.3 731.9
Corporate and Other..............cccoovvinnen. herte i eserreerenararete e e saess 3.1 1.9 9.2 7.7
Intersegment eliminations............................ s s e, (36.9) (32.0) (102.9) (326.4)

TOMAL. e 537.4 530.5 1,835.5 2,374.4

(1) Prior to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and
electricity purchased for ATCO Gas’ and ATCQ Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for their customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.

Segmented earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the three and nine months ended September
30, 2005, were as follows:

For the Three For the Nine

Months Ended Months Ended

September 30 September 30
($ Millions) » 2005 2004 2005 2004

' (unaudited)

Utilities (1)....co.oovoverenen, et 13.4 10.3 73.5 130.2
POWET GENEIALION .....ooovviiviiivieciiecrieer e s 22.2 184 66.9 55.9
G1obal ENLEIPIISES ...oovevveerririierieiiiieieerie ettt seeeserere e 16.9 18.6 52.8 41.3
COrPOrate And OLNET...............oveeeeeeeee oo ereee e enee oo (5.7) (3.6) (16.0) (11.2)
Intersegment eliminations. ... ......oc.voviocoriviuiiiee e ecsee e e (0.3) 0.3 0.7) 2.5
TOMAL. .ottt 46.5 44.0 176.5 218.7

Note:
(1) Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2004, include earnings of 855.1 million from the Transfer
of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses.

Utilities

Revenues from the Utilities Business Group for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $27.6
million to $221.8 million, primarily due to:
e impact of the interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas (refer to Regulatory
Matters — ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas sections);
e 2004 one time impact of the finalization of natural gas supply costs related to the Transfer of the Retail
Energy Supply Businesses; and



e 2004 one time impact of 2004 General Rate Application adjustments for ATCO Gas related to the refund cf
deferred incone taxes. :

This increase was partially offset by:
o lower natural gas volumes purchased for ATCO Pipelines’ customers as a result of customers moving from
sales service (commodity and transportation revenues) to transportation service only contracts
(transportation revenue).

Teraperatures in ATCO Gas for the three morths ended September 20, 2005, were 27.3% colder than normal,
compared t¢ 15.8% colder than normal for the corresponding pericd in 2004,

Revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $601.5 million to $890.4 million, primarily
due to:

2 lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004;

* lower natural gas volumes purchased for ATCO Pipelines’ customers as a result of customers moving from
sales service (commodity and transportation recvenues) to ansportation service only contracts
(transportation revenue); and .

e warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas, which were 3.8% warmer than normal, compared to 1.3% colder than
normal for the corresponding period in 2004,

This decreasc was partially offset by:

e impact of the interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas (refer to Regulatory
Matters — ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas sections);

o  higher franchisz fees collected by ATCO Gas; .
higher transmission revenue as a result of increased rate base in 2004 due to higher capital expenditures in
ATCO Eleciric; ‘ ‘
customer additiens in ATCO Gas; and

- e impact of the AEUB decision adjosting ihe 2001 and 2002 revenne requirements for changes in deferred

income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section).

Earnings for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $3.1 million to $13.4 million, primarily due
to:
¢ interim custcraer rate incieases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas approved by the AEUB for 2005
recognized in the third quarter which offset higher costs incurred in 2005 in ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric
that are not yet fully reflected in current customer rates. The majority of these cost increases are for higher
depreciatior. and financing costs related to rate base additions in late 2004 and to date in 2005, and
increased operating costs. Rate applications were filzd in May 2005 requesting the AEUR {0 incorporate
these higher costs in customer rates (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas
sections).

Eavrnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2002, were $73.5 million. Eamings for the correspoading
period in 2004 were $75.1 million, excluding the $55.1 million after-tax gain on the Transfer of the Retail Energy
Supply Businesses in May 2004. Earnings feor the nine months ended September 30, 2004, including the impact of
the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, were $130.2 million.

Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, excluding the impact of the Transfer of the Retail Energy
Supply Businesses, decreased by $1.6 million, primarily due to:

e higher costs incurred in 2005 in ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric that are not yet fully reflected in interim
customer rates. The majority of these cost increases are for higher depreciation and financing costs related
to rate base additions in late 2004 and to date in 2005, and increased operating costs. Rate applications
were filed in May 2005 requesting the AEUB to incorporate these higher costs in customer rates (refer to
Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas sections); and

e warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.
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This decrease was partially offset by: sy
o impact of the AEUB decision adjusnng the 2001 and 2002 revenue requiremerits for changes in deferred
income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section); and
e customer additions in ATCO Gas

Power Generation

Revenues from the Power Generation Business Group for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2003,
increased by $32.6 million to $188.7 million and by $84.2 million to $553.5 million, respectively, primarily due to:
s natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no margin” basis and improved merchant performance in ATCO
Power’s United Kingdom (“U.K.”) operations and the impact of the TXU Europe settlement; and
e operations at ATCO Power’s 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant commissioned in July 2004,

Earnings for the three months ended beptember 30, 2005, increased by $3.§ million to $22.2 million, pnmanly due
to:

¢ impact of the TXU Europe settlement

¢ improved performance in ATCO Power’s Alberta generating plants; and

¢ operations at ATCO Power’s 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant commissioned in July 2004.

This increase was partially offset by:
o  higher maintenance and general and administration costs in Alberta Power (2000) operations;
e decrease in ATCO Power’s earnings of $1.4 mﬂhon due to lower spark spreads realized on electricity sold
to the Alberta Power Pool.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the three months ended September 30, 2003, averaged $66.91 per
megawatt hour, compared to average prices of $54.33 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in
2004, Natural gas prices for the three months ended September 30, 2005, averaged $8.81 per gigajoule,
compared to average prices of $5.90 per gigajoule for the corresponding period in 2004, The consequence
of these changes in electricity and natural gas prices was an average spark spread of $0.85 per megawatt
hour for the three months ended September 30, 2005, compared to $10.08 per megawatt beur for the
corresponding period in 2004. The impact of the lower spark spreads was mitigated by lower generation
volumes in 2005.

Spazk spread is related to the difference between Alberta Power Pool electricity prices and the marginal
cost of producing electricity from natural gas.

Changes in spark spread affect the resnlts of approximately 300 megawatts of blant capacity owned in
- Alberta by ATCO Power out of a total world wide owned capacity of approximately 1,318 megawatts.

Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $11.0 million to $66.9 million, primarily due
to:
o impact of the TXU Europe settlement and improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s UK.
operations; and
e operations at ATCO Power’s 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant commissioned in July 2004,

This increase was partially offset by:
e decrease in ATCO Power’s earnings of $3.0 million due to lower spark spreads realized on electricity sold
to the Alberta Power Pool;
¢ impact of favorable one-time income tax adjustments in 2004; and
¢ higher maintenance and general and administration costs in Alberta Power (2000) operations.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, averaged $54.79 per
megawatt hour, compared to average prices of $54.43 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in
2004. Natural gas prices for the nine months ended September 30, 20035, averaged $7.44 per gigajoule,
compared to average prices of $6.20 per gigajoule for the corresponding period in 2004. The consequence
of these changes in electricity and natural gas prices was an average spark spread of $(1.01) per megawatt
hour for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, compared to $7.93 per megawatt’ hour for the
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corresponding period in 2004. The impact of the lower spark spreads was mitigated by lower generation
volumes in 2005.

During the three months ended September 30, 2005, Alb:rta Fower (2000)’s deferred availability incentive
accouni decreased by -$2.0 million to $45.3 million. The dscrease was dud “¢ planned outages and amortization in
excess ¢f additiorze] availability incentives received for plant availability. During the three months ended September
30, 2005, the amortization of deferred availability incentives, recorded in revenues, increased by $0.2 million to $2.2
million as compared to the same period in 2004.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2003, Alberta Power (2000)’s deferred availability incentive account
decreased by $0.8 million to $45.2 million. The decrease wes due to planned outages and amortization in excess of
additionzl availability incentive payments received for plan: availzbility. During the nine months ended September
30, 2005, the amortization of deferred availzbility incentives, recorded in revenues, increased by $0.6 million to $6.2
million as compared to the same period in 2004,

Global Fnterprises

Revenues from the Global Enterprises Business Group o7 *he three montks ended September 30, 2005, decreased
by $49 € rillion t¢ $160.7 million, primarily due to:
» Jower volumes of natural gas pirchased and reso.d ot ratural g=s Jiguids extraction in ATCO Midstream;
and
*  lower busitess ac‘rivi‘ry in ATCGO Froatec.

These decreasss were partiallv offset by:
¢ higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstreain. The additional swrage capaclly is attributable 1o higher capacity leased and ihe tming
and demand of storage capacity sola. '

Revenues from the Global Enterprises Business Group for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by
$24€ .6 million to $485.3 miliion, primarity dus to.
e lower volumes of nawral gas purchased in ATCO Midstream for ATCO Gas as a result of the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Businesses; and
e lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

These decreases were partially offset by:
¢ higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage reveimes due 1o increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. 'The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity ieased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold; and
¢ increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.

Earninigs for the three months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $1.7 million to $16.9 miilion, primarily due
to:
* lower voluines and higher shrinkage costs for naturai gas liquids in ATCO Midstream.

These decreases were partiaily offset by:
e higher storage earnings due to increased storage capacity sold in ATCO Midstream. The additional storage
capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold; and
¢ increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO [-Tek.

Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $11.5 million to $52.8 million, primarily due
to:
¢  higher storage earnings due to higher fees and increased storage capacity sold in ATCO Midstream. The
additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage
capacity sold; and
e increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.
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Corporate and Other g

Earnings for the three-and nine months ended September 30, 2005 decreased by $2.1 mﬂhon to $(5 7) million and
by $4.8 million to $(16.0) million, respectively, primarily due to:
¢ increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Ltd. Class I Non-Voting share prices since Tune 30, 2005, and December 31, 2004, respectively.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulated operations are conducted by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, Northland Utilities (NWT), Northland
Utilities (Yellowknife) and Yukon Electrical, the - ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines divisions of ATCO Gas and
Pipelines Ltd. and the generating plants of Alberta Power (20009, all of which are wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Corporation’s wholly owned subsidiary, CU Inc.

In July 2004, the AEUB issued its generic cost of capital decision. The decision established a standardized approach
for each utility company regulated by the AEUB for determining the rate of return on common equity based upon a
return of 9.60% on common equity. This rate of return will be adjusted annually by 75% of the charge in long term
Canada bond yield as forecast in the November Consensus Forecast, adjusted for the average difference between the
10 year and 30 year Canada bond yields for the month of October as reported in the National Post. This adjustment
mechanism is the same as the National Energy Board uses in determining its formula based rate of return. The
AEUB will undertake a review of this mechanism for the year 2009 or if the rate of return resulting from the formula
is less than 7.6% or greater than 11.6%. The AEUB also noted that any party, at any time, could petition for a
review of the adjustment formula if that party can demonstrate a material change in facts or circumstances.

The decision also established the appropriate capifal structure for each utility regulated by tte AEUB. The AEUB
determined that any proposed changes to the approved capital structure which result from a material change in the
investment risk of a utility will be addressed at utility specific rate applications.

In November 2004, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 9.50% for 2005.” The AEUB also
announced that the 2005 generic return on equity would only apply to utilities which file rate applications in 2005.
If no rate applications are filed, then existing return on common equity rates will continue to apply.

In July 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric filed applications with the AEUB addressing the impact on the 2003
and 2004 revenue requirements of the transfer of the retail energy supply business to DEML and the customer care
volume forecast for services provided by ATCO I-Tek Business Services for 2003 and 2004. In April and May
2005, the AEUB issued decisions which resulted in an.increase to revenues and earnings of $2.4 million and $1.6
million, respectively.

In June 2003, as part of their rate applications, ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas submitted a filing to the AEUB that
addressed certain common matters. ATCO Pipelines is also a party to this filing as the concerns are common to all
three utilities. This filing included evidence regarding the appropriate ratemaking approach in the determination of
utility revenue requirements as well as treatment of deferred pension costs, executive compensation, head office rent
expense and the continued use of preferred shares as a form of financing for the three utilities. The AEUB is
expected to hear this filing in May 2006 and a decision is expected in the fourth quarter of 2006,

ATCO Electric

In May 2005, ATCO Electric filed a general tariff application with the AEUB for the 2005 and 2006 test years
requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and operating costs
associated with increased rate base in Alberta. A decision from the AEUB on the general tariff application is not
expected until early in 2006. In May and June 2005, ATCO Electric filed applications requesting interim refundable
rates for distribution and transmission operations, pending the AEUB’s decision on the general tariff application.
On July 14, 2005, ATCO Electric received a decision from the AEUB approving its requested interim refundable
rates for distribution operations. On September 7, 2005, ATCO Electric received a decision from the AEUB
approving an interim refundable rate increase of $5.0 million for transmission operations. Revenues associated with
the interim refundable rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, were recognized in the third quarter.
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In August 2002, the AEUB issued a decision in which it demied ATCO: Elzctric’s application to adjust its 2001 and
2002 transmission and distribution revenue requirements by $4.6 million for changes in the amounts of deferred
income taxes recerded. In November 2002, ATCO Electric filed a review and variance application of the August
2002 decision with the AEUB. In May 2005, the AEUB changed its Augnst 2002 decision and allowed ATCO
Electric to increas its revenues and earnings by $4.6 million.

ATCO Gas

In May 2005, ATCO Gas filed a general rate application with the AEUB for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test years
requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and operating costs
associated with increased rate base in Alberta. A decisicr frum the AEUB on the general rate application is not
expected until early in 2006. In June 2005, ATCO Gas filed an application requesting interim refundable rates
pending the AEUB’s decision on the general rate application. On August 28, 2005, ATCO Gas received a decision
from the AEUB approving an interim refundable rate insrease, to be collected from northern customers, of $7.0
million. Revenues associated with the interim refundable rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, were
recognized in the third quarter.

In October 2001, the AEUB approved the sale by ATCO Gas of certain nroperties in the City of Calgary, known as
the Calgary Stores Block, for $6.6 million (excluding costs of disposition) and allocated $4.1 million of the proceeds
to customers and $1.8 million to ATCO Gas. In Janvary 2904, the Alberta Court of Appeal overturned this decision
and directed the AEUB to allocate $5.4 million of the proceeds to ATCO Gas. The City of Calgary has appealed
this decision to the Supreme Court of Canada, which has also granted ATCO Gas leave to cross-appeal the decision.
The Supreme Court of Canada heard the appeal on May 11, 2005 and ATCO Gas is currently awaiting a decision.
Accordingly, ATCO Gas has not yet recorded the impact of the Alberta Court of Appeal decision.

In March 2004, the AEUB directed ATCO Gas to continue to reserve for the benefit of utility customers 16.7
petajoules of storage capacity at its Carbon storage facility for the 2004/2005 storage year, which ended on March
31, 2003, and allowed ATCO Midstream to continue to utilize the remaining uncontracted capacity at a rate of $0.45
per gigajoule, up from $0.41 per gigajoule. ATCO Gas was granted leave to appeal this AEUB decision to the
Alberta Court of Appeal. On June 17, 2005 the appeal was dismissed. On September 16, 2005, ATCO Gas filed for
leave to appeai the Aiberta Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada.

In July 2004, the AEUB initiated a written process to consider its role in regulating the operations of the Carbon
storage facility. On June 15, 2005, the AEUB issued a decision with respect to this process. In addition to
addressing other matters, the decision found that the AEUB has the authority, when necessary in the public interest,
to direct a utility to utilize a particular asset in a specific manner, even over the objection of the utiiity. ATCO Gas
has filed for leave to appeal the decision with the Alberta Count of Appeal. On October 3, 2005, the AEUB
established processes to review the use of the Carbon Storage Facility for utility purposes.

ATCO Gas’ position is that the Carbon storage facility is no longer required for utility service. Accordingly, in
March 2005, ATCO Gas filed a letter with the AEUB in which it withdrew all evidence previously filed by it with
respect to the 2005/2006 Carbon Storage Plan, thus providing notice that none of the related costs and revenues will
form part of regulated operations on or after April 1, 2005, On March 23, 2005, the AEUB issued an interim order
directing ATCO Gas to maintain the Carbon storage facility in rate base and confirming a lease of tie entire storage
capacity to ATCO Midstream at a placeholder rate of $0.45 per gigajoule until otherwise determined by the AEUB.
ATCO Gas filed for Ieave to appeal the interim order on April 15, 2005.

ATCO Gas has filed an application with the AEUB to address, among other things, corrections required to historical
transportation imbalances that have impacted ATCO Gas’ deferred gas account. In April 2005, the AEUB issued a
decision resulting in a 15% decrease in the transportation imbalance adjustments sought by ATCO Gas. The
decision resulted in a decrease to revenues and earnings of $1.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively. The City of
Calgary has filed for leave to appeal the AEUB’s decision. ATCO Gas has filed a cross appeal of the AEUB’s
decision. The cross appeal is contingent upon the granting of the City of Calgary’s leave to appeal which is
scheduled to be heard in February 2006.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RFSOURCES

Cash flow from operations provides a. substanual pomon of the Corporauon s cash requirements. Additional cash
requirements are met externally through bank borrowings'and the issuance of long term and non-recourse debt and
preferred shares. Commercial paper borrowings and short term bank loans are used to provide flexibility in the
timing and amounts of long term financing,

Cash flow from operations for the three months ended September 30, 2005, mcreased by $7.5 mﬂhon to $135 9
million, primarily due to: .

e  higher earnings; and :

e impact of the TXU Europe settlement in ATCO Power

This increase was partially offset by: s - ‘ : o
e one time recovery in August 2004 of $10.4 mllhon of avallabrhty incentive payments assomated with a
force majeure claim for curtailed production of- electnc1ty at Alberta Power (2000) S Battle Rrver
generating plant.

Cash flow from operations for the mne months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $97. 6 rmlllon to $471 5
million, primarily due to:

¢  impact of the TXU Europe settlement in ATCO Power and - R

e higher earnings. e o

Investing for the three months ended September 30 2005 decreased by $0.2 miilion to $122.4 rrurhon, primarily
due to:

¢ changes in noncash working c_aprtgl_ in respect q_f investing activities.
This decrease was partially offsetby: ~  *
e higher capital expenditures.

Capital expenditures for the three months ended September 30, 2003, increased by $9.9 million to $132.7 million,
primarily due to:

* increased investment in regulated natural gas transportation and electric transmission and distribution
projects.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ lower investment in power generation projects.

Investing for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $34.0 million to $310.1 million, primarily
due to:

¢ lower capital expendltures, and

e increased proceeds from Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses.

This decrease was partially offset by:
¢ changes in non-cash working capital in respect of investing activities.

Capital expenditures for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $40.9 million to $345.5 million,
primarily due to:
s lower investment in power generation and regulated electric transmission projects.

This decrease was partially offset by:
e increased investment in regulated electric distribution and natural gas transportation and distribution
projects.

During the three months ended September 30, 2005, the Corporation redeemed:
e  $4.8 million of long term debt; and
e  $19.2 million of non-recourse long term debt.
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These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $24.0 millicr.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2005, the Corporation issued:
o $37.0 millior of long term debt. o

During the nine wonths ended September 39, 2003, the Cergoration redeemed:
»  $125.0 million of 8.43% Debentures 1995 Series,
*  $6.7 million of other long term debt; and
e  $45.2 million of non-recourse long term debt.

These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $139.9 million.
Foreign currency translation for the three and nine months ended Septcraber 30, 2005, negatively impacted the
Corporation’s casn position by $4.1 miilion, and $11.0 million, respectively, primarily as a result of:
o strengthening of the Canadian dollar which resulted in a reduction in the value of cash balances
denominated in U K. pounas when translated into Canadian doliars.

Contractual obligations disclosed in the 2004 MD&A remain substantialcy unchanged as at September 30, 2005.

At September 30, 2005, the Corporation had the followtiig credit Lncs (hai enable it to obtain funding for general
COTpOrate purposes.

: Total Used Available
(3 Millions)
Long term COIRMILEA. .........ccvoeiiiirr et s 326.0 47.4 278.6
Short term committed .............c.ooveiiiiieece e 600.0 3.0 597.0
UnCOMMULIE .......coviiniicniiiiieriictiecieeieeeetie ettt eereeereas 69.0 6.4 62.6
TOMAL ..ottt $93.0 56.8 938.2

The amount and timing of future financings will depend on market conditions and the specific needs of the
Corporation.

Net current and long term future income tax liabilities of $201.9 million at September 30, 2003, are attributable
to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. These
differences result primarily from recognizing 1everue and expenses in different years for financial and tax reporting
purposes. Future income taxes will become payable when such differences are reversed through the settlerneni of
liabilities and realization of assets.

Cn May 20, 2004, the Corporation commenced a normai course issuer bid for ihe purchase of up to 3% of the
outstanding Class A shares. The bid expired on May 19, 2005. Over the life of the bid, 289,300 shates were
purchased, of which 256,800 were purchased in 2004 and 33,000 were purchased in 2005. On May 20, 2003, the
Corporation commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the outstanding Class A shares.
The bid will expire on May 19, 2006. From May 20, 2005, to October 24, 2003, 142,700 shares have been
purchased.

For the first three quarters of 2005, the quarterly dividend payment on the Corporation’s Class A and Class B
shares increased by $0.01 to $0.275 per share. The Corporation has increased its annual common share dividend
each year since its inception as a holding company in 1972. The payment of any dividend is at the discretion of the
Board of Directors and depends on the financial condition of the Corporation and other factors.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

At October 24, 2005, the Corporation had outstanding 82,935,386 Class A shares and 44,017,784 Class B shares and
options to purchase 1,420,200 Class A shares.
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BUSINESS RISKS

On February 16, 2003, the Kyoto Protocol came into effect. The Corporation is unable to determine what impact the
protocol may have on its operations as the Government of Canada has not yet provided industry specific details for
its 2005 Climate Change Plan. It is anticipated that the Corporation’s power purchase arrangements relating to its
coal-fired generating plants will allow the Corporation to recover any increased costs associatel with the
implementation of the protocol.

Regulated Operations

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines are regulated primarily by the AEUB, which administers acts and
regulations covering such matters as ratzs, financing, accounting, construction, operation and service arza. The
AEUB may approve interim rates, subject to final determination. These subsidiaries are subject to the normal risks
faced by companies that are regulated. These risks include the approval by the AEUB of customer rates that permit
a reasonable opportunity to recover on a timely basis the estimated costs of providing service, including a fair return
on rate base. The Corporation’s ability to recover the actual costs of providing service and to earn the approved
rates of return depends on achieving the forecasts established in the rate-setting process.

Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses

Although ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric have transferred to DEML certain retail functions, including the supply of
natural gas and electricity to customers and billing and customer care functions, the legal obligations of ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric remain if DEML fails to perform. In certain events (including where DEML fails to supply
natural gas and/or electricity and ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric are ordered by the AEUB to do so), the
functions will revert to ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer proceeds to DEML by
ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric.

Centrica plc, DEML’s parent, has provided a $300 million guarantee, supported by a $235 million letter of credit in
respect of DEML’s obligations to ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric and ATCO I-Tek Business Services in respect of the
ongoing relationships contemplated under the transaction agreements. However, there can be no assurance that the
coverage under these agreements will be adequate to cover all of the costs that could arise in the event of a reversion
of such functions.

The Corporation has provided a guarantee of ATCO Gas’, ATCO Electric’s and ATCO I-Tek Business Services’
payment and indemnity obligations in respect of the ongoing relationships to DEML contemplated under the
transaction agreements. L 4

As a result of the agreements with DEML, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric are no longer involved in arranging for
the supply and sale of natural gas and electricity to customers, but will continue to own the assets and provide the
transportation and distribution services under AEUB approved rates that provide for a recovery of costs of service
and a fair return.

Late Payment Penalties on Utility Bills
As a result of recent decisions of the Supreme Court of Canada in Garland vs. Consumers’ Gas Co., the imposition
of late payment penalties on utility bills has been called into question. The Corporation is unable to determine at
this time the impact, if any, that these decisions will have on the Corporation.

Alberta Power (2000)

As a result of unprecedented drought conditions, the water levels in the cooling pond used by the Battle River
generating plant in its production of electricity had fallen to all-time lows in early 2003 and in 2004 and the
Corporation was forced to curtail production of electricity. Water levels in the cooling pond have returned to normal
for this time of year and there has been no curtailment of production to date in 2005.

On June 10, 2005, Alberta Environment announced that it will begin to implement mercury emission standards for
coal-fired generating plants through a new provincial regulation that is expected to be in place in late 2005. Owners
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of coal-fired generating plants are required to submii proposals on capturing at least 70% of the mercury in the coal
burned in their plants by March 2007. Technelogy for mercury emission reductior. must be in place by the end of
2019. It is anticipated that the Corporation’s power purchase arrangsments relating to its coal-fired generating
plants will allow the Corporation to recover any increased costs associated with complying with the new regulation.

Non-Regulated Operations
ATCO Power
Alberta Power Poal electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads can be very volatile, as shown in

the followirg graph, which illustrates a range of prices experienced during the period January 2000 to September
2005,

Alberta Power Pool Prices, Natural Gas Prices and Spark Spreads
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Changes in Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads may have a significant
impact on the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from operations in the future. It is the Corporation’s policy to
continually monitor the status of its non-regulated clectrical generating capacity that is not subject to long term
commitments. ;

Brighton Beach Guarantee

ATCO Power has financed its non-regulated electrical generating capacity on a non-recourse basis. In these
projects, the lender’s recourse in the event of default is limited to the business and assets of the project in question,
which includes the Corporation’s equity therein. Canadian Utilities Limited has provided a number of guarantees
related to ATCO Power’s obligations under non-recourse loans associated with certain of its projects. These
guarantees remain substantially unchanged from the disclosure contained in the 2004 MD&A, except for: '

a) Equity contributions — Represents equity funding requirements needed to complete construction of the project
being built. At September 30, 2005, ihere are no further obligations under this guarantee for the Brighton
Beach project financing,

b) Construction Liens — Represents liens currently registered against project assets. Effective September 30, 2005,
ATCO Power entered info an indemnity agreement with Brighton Beach Power Ltd. obligating it to cover any
cash shortfalls associated with clearing the construction liens registered against the project. This agreement
allowed the project to achieve financial completion under the terms of the project financing agreement. The
maximum amount of the indemnity is $20 million. Canadian Utilities Limited issued a guarantee to Brighton
Beach Power Ltd. guaranteeing the payments under the indemnity agreement. The 1ndemfuty and the guarantee
are reduced as the liens are settled.

To date, Canadian Utilities Limited has not been fequired to pay any of its guaranteed obligations.
ATCO Midstream

Timing, capacity and demand of ATCO Midstream’s storage business as well as changes in market conditions may
impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from storage operations.

ATCO Midstream extracts ethane and other natural gas liquids from natural gas streams at its extraction plants.
These products are sold under either long term cost of service arrangements or market based arrangements. Changes
in market conditions may impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from natural gas liquids extraction
operations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Employee Future Benefits

The expected long term rate of return on pension plan assets is determined at the beginning of the year on the basis
of the long bond yield rate at the beginning of the year plus an equity and management premium that reflects the
plan asset mix. Actual balanced fund performance over a longer period suggests that this premium is about 1%,
which, when added to the long bond yield rate of 5.9% at the beginning of 2003, resulted in an expected long term
rate of return of 6.9% for 2005. This methodology is supported by actuarial guidance on long term asset return
assumptions for the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans, taking into account asset class returns, normal
equity risk premiums, and asset diversification effect on portfolio returns.

Expected return on plan assets for the year is calculated by applying the expected long term rate of return to the
market related value of plan assets, which is the average of the market value of plan assets at the end of the
preceding three years. The expected long term rate of return has declined over the past four years, from 8.1% in
2001 to 6.9% in the nine months ended September 30, 2005. The result has been a decrease in the expected return
on plan assets and a corresponding increase in the cost of pension benefits. In addition, the actual return on plan
assets over the same period has been lower than expected (i.e., an experience loss), which is also contributing to an
increase in the cost of pension benefits as losses are amortized to earnings.
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The liability discount rate that is used 1 celeulete e cos® «f vesefit ohi'gations reflects market interest rates on
high quality corperaie berds that atch the tiraizng and ameus of exyacied barefit peyments. The liability discount
rate has also declined over the same four vear period, from €.9% at the end 2 2001 to 5.9% at the end of 2004; the
rate has remained at 5.9% in the nine months ended September 30, 2005. The result has been an increase in benefit
obligations (i.e., an experience loss), which is contributing to an increase in the cost of pension benefits as losses are
amortized to sarnings.

In accordance with the Corporation’s accounting policy to amortize cumulative experience gains and losses in
excess of 10 percent of the greater of the accrued benefit obligations or the market value of plan assets, the
Corporation began amortizing a portion of the net cumulaiive experience losses on plan assets and accrued benefit
obligations in 2003 for both pension benefit plans and other post employment benefit plans and continued this
amortization during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005.

The assumed arnual health care cost trend rate increases used in measuring the accumulated post employment
benefit obligations in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, are as follows: for drug costs, 9.3%
starting in 2005 grading down over 8 years 10 4.5%, and for other medical and dental costs, 4.0% for 2005 and
thereafter. Combined with higher claims experience, the effect of these changes has been to increase the costs of
othe: post employment benefits.

The effect of changes in these estimates and assumptions is mitigated by an AEUB decision to record the costs of
employee future berefits when paid rather than accrued. Therefore, a significant portion of the benefit plans
expense or income is unrecognized by the reguiated operations, exciuding Aiberta Power (2000).

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLITIES

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
guideiine pertaining to the consolidation of variable interest entities. The guideline requires the Corporation to
ideniify variable interest entities in which it has an interest, determine whether it is the primary beneficiary of such
entities, and, if so, to consolidate them. This change in accounting had no effect on the consolidated financial
statements for the tnree and nine months ended September 30, 2005.

Qctober 24, 2003
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-~ CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT CF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
Millions of Canudian Dollars except per share data)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30 September 30
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004
S (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenues 2 $§ 5374 $ 530.5 $1,835.5 - $2,3744
Costs and expenses o
Natural gas supply 2 83 53.2 143.9 808.1
Purchased power 2 104 8.8 332 80.4
Operation and maintenance - C 248.4 220.5 741.9 637.1
Selling and administrative o ' C 45.9 37.5 133.1 114.7
Depreciation and amortization S 70.5 66.1 227.0 2103
Interest 38.1 36.8 119.3 1147
Interest on non-recourse long term debt 12.8 13.5 39.3 36.1
Franchise fees ‘ 20.9 18.9 162.8 95.9
) 455.3 455.3 - 1,540.5 2,097.3
' 82.1 752 2950 277.1
Gain on transfer of retail energy supply businesses 2 - - - 633
Interest and other income 8.3 7.4 26.0 20.4
Earnings before income taxes 90.4 82.6 321.0 ©360.8
Income taxes 34.9 29.6 . 117.6 1152
- : 555 153.0 203.4 245.6
Dividends on equity preferred shares . ' 9.0 9.0 26.9 26.9
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares 2 46.5 440 176.5 ‘ 218.7
Retained earnings at beginning of period 1,661.4 1,540.0 1,603.4 1,435.4
1,707.9 1,584.0 1,779.9 1,654.1
Dividends on Class A and Class B shares 34.9 336 104.7 100.8
Purchase of Class A shares 2.6 2.1 4.8 5.0
Retained earnings at end of period $1,670.4 $1,548.3 $1,670.4 $1,548.3
Earnings per Class A and Class B share 3 $ 037 $ 035 $ 139 $ 173
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share 3 $ 037 $ 035 $ 1.39 5 172
Dividends paid per Class A and Class B share 3 $ 0.275 $ 0.265 $ 0.825 $ 0.795
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CANADIAN UTTLITIES LiMITT)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SEEETY

Millions of Canadian Doliars)

September 30 December 31
Note 2005 2004 2004
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and short term: investments 7 § 69¢6.8 $ 35595 $ 6995
Accounts receivable 281.4 336.9 372.8
Inventories 79.1 162.2 172.9
Future income taxes 0.1 - 03
Deferred electricity costs 34 - -
Prepaid expenses 28.7 33.3 24.5
1,089.5 1,091.9 1,270.0
Property, plant and equipment 5,099.6 4,974.1 5,045.3
Security deposits for debt 20.8 229 23.1
Other assets 127.8 120.8 124.7
$6,337.1 $6,209.7 $6,463.1
LIABILITIES AND SHARE OWNERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Bank indebtedness $ - $ - $ 1.2
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 270.6 284.7 2843
Income taxes payable 6.1 4.1 426
Future income taxes - 12.8 -
Deferred natural gas cost recoveries - 0.2 0.9
Deferred electiicity cost recoveries - 25.2 11.7
Notes payable - 96.0 -
Long term debt due within one year - 6.9 5.3
Non-recoursé long term debt due within one year 54.2 47.7 50.6
330.9 4776 396.6
Future income taxes 202.0 2235 2224
Deferred credits 7 219.2 135.9 158.0
Long term debt 2,081.5 1,906.0 2,171.0
Non-recourse Iong term debt 691.1 770.7 760.9
Equity preferred shares 636.5 636.5 636.5
Class A and Class B share owners’ equity
Class A and Class B shares 3 519.2 512.5 514.3
Contributed surplus 0.6 04 0.4
Retained earnings 1,670.4 1,548.3 1,603.4
Foreign currency translation adjustment (14.3) (1.7 0.4
2,i75.9 2,059.5 2,117.7
$6,337.1 $6,209.7 $6,463.1
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‘CANADIANUTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Millions:of Canadian Dollars)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
~September 30 September 30
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Operating activities » .
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares $ 465 $ 44.0 $176.5 . $2187
Adjustments for: .

Depreciation and amortization 70.5 66.1 227.0 - 2103

Future income taxes 53 (0.6) 7.1 2.5)

Gain on transfer of retail energy supply businesses . cL

- net of income taxes 2 - - - . (551

Deferred availability incentives ' 2.0 15.8 08 (53

TXU Europe settlement - net of income taxes 7 10.4 - 49.5 -

Other 5.2 3.1 122 . 78
Cash flow from operations 135.9 128.4 471.5 373.9
Changes in non-cash working capital o ' 1.0 (46.3) " 91.4 1333

e ) 136.9 82.1 5629 5072
Investing activities : . o
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 132.7) (122.8) (345.5) (386.4)
Proceeds on transfer of retail energy supply businesses .

- net of income taxes 2 - S 434 225
Costs on disposal of property, plant and equipment .7 (3.5) (.5 19
Contributions by utility customers for extensions to plant 16.1 11.2 374 40.6
Non-current deferred electricity costs 1.7 2.0 (10.0) 9.9
Changes in non-cash working capital ©.3) 93) (27.8) 4.9
Other G.1) 0.2) (6.1) “.D

(122.4) (122.6) (310.1) (344.1)
Financing activities ' '
Change in notes payable o T - 96.0 - 96.0
Issue of long term debt - - 37.0 235.8
Issue of non-recourse long term debt . - - - 10.0
Repayment of long term debt (4.8) (27.0) (131.7) (131.8)
Repayment of non-recourse long term debt (19.2) (17.3) (45.2) C(40.9)
Purchase of Class A shares 0.8) (0.8) - 3.2)
Dividends paid to Class A and Class B share owners (34.9) (33.6) 104.7) (100.3)
Changes in non-cash working capital 1.7 1.0) 2.8 0.1
Other (0.6) 0.6 (1.1) (1.0

(58.6) 16.9 (242.9) 68.7

Foreign currency translation 6.9 (2.3) (11.4) (0.4)
Cash position ®
Increase (decrease) (80.5) (25.9) (1.5 231.4
Beginning of period 747.3 585.4 698.3 328.1
End of period $ 696.8 $559.5 $696.8 $559.5

I Cash position consists of cash and short term investments less current bank indebtedness, and includes
$130.3 million (2004 - $51.8 million) which is only available for use in joint ventures (see Note 7).
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CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITLD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
(Unaudited, Tabular Amounts in Millions of Canadian Dollars)

1. Finarcial statement presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accowuting principles (“GAAP”) and should bs read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes included in the Corporaticn’s Financial Information contained in its 2004 Annual
Renort. These inter'm financial statements have been prepated using the same accounting policies as used in the
financiai staiements Tor the year ended December 31, 2004, except as described pelow.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA”) guideline pertaining tc the consolidatior of variable intersst emtities. The guideline requires the
Corporation to identify variable interest entities in which it has an interest, determine whether it is the primary
beneficiary of such entities, and, if so, to consolidate them. This change in accounting had no effect on the
comnsolidated financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2003,

Due to the seasenal pature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in el=ctricity prices in Alberta and the timing of
rate decisions, the consolidated statements of earnings and retained earnings for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2004 are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual basis.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.
2. Transfer of retail energy supply businesses

On Mey 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail erergy supply businesses to Direct Energy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML”), a subsidiary of Centrica plc. Proceeds of the
transfer were $90 million, of which $45 million was paid at closing, and the remainder was paid on May 4, 2005,
Net proceeds, after adiustments related to legal, transition and other deferred costs pertaining to the transfer of the
retail energy supply businesses, resulted in a gain of $63.3 million before income taxes of $8.2 million and increased
earnings by $55.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2004,

The Corporation’s revenues and natural gas supply and purchased power costs after May 4, 2004 were reduced
accordingly for 2004 and thereafter. Subsequent to May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas continued fo purchase ratural gas on
behalf of DEML until the transfer of the relevant ATCO Gas natural gas purchase contracts to DEML was
completed in September 2004, There will be no ongoing impact on earnings resulting from the transfer of these
businesses as natural gas and electricity have historically been sold to customers on a “ro-margin” basis. ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric continue to own and operate the natural gas and electricity distribution systems used to
deliver evergy. '

3. Class A and Class B shares

In July 2005, the Corporation’s board of directors approved a two-for-one share split of the outstanding Class A and
Class B shares. The share split took the form of a stock dividend whereby share owners received one additional
Class A share for each Class A share held as of the record date and one additional Class B share for each Class B
share held as of the record date. The stock dividend was paid on September 15, 2005 to share owners of record at
the close of business on August 29, 2005. All share, stock option and per share amounts have been retroactively
restated to reflect this share split.

There were 82,935,386 (2004 — 82,346,086) Class A non-voting shares and 44,017,784 (2004 — 44,380,384) Class B
common shares outstanding on September 30, 2005. In addition, there were 1,420,200 options to purchase Class A
non-voting shares outstanding at September 30, 2005 under the Corporation’s stock option plan. From October 1,
2003, to October 24, 2005, no stock options were granted, no stock options were exercised, no stock options were
cancelled and no Class A non-voting shares have been purchased under the Corporation’s normal course issuer bid.
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3. Class A and Class B shares (conu';lued) L

The average number of shares used to calculats ¢arnings per shate are as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 33
2005 2004 2005 2004
Weighted average shares outstanding 126,905,641 126,697,534 126,892,482 126,771,518
Effect of dilutive stock options 592,433 482,988 498,907 534,744
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 127,498,074 127,180,522 127,391,389 127,306,262

4. Employee future benefits

In the three months ended September 30, 2005, net expense of $1.9 million (2004 — $0.9 million) was recognized for
pension benefit plans and net expense “of $1 1 million (2004 — $0.8 million) was recognized for other post
employment benefit plans.

In the nine months ended September 30, 2005, net expense of $5.8 million (2004 — $1.4 million) was recognized for
pension benefit plans and net expens¢. of $3 4 million (2004 — $2.9 million) was recognized for othe1 post
employment benefit plans.

5. Regulatory matters

In May 2005, ATCO Electric filed a general tariff application with the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board
(“AEUB”) for the 2005 and 2006 test years requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased
financing, depreciation and operating costs associated with increased rate base in Alberta. A decision from the
AEUB on the general tariff application is not expected until early in 2006. in May and June 2005, ATCO Electric
filed applications requesting interim refuridable rates for distribution and transmission opemhons pending the
AEUB'’s decision on the general tariff application. On July 14, 2005, ATCO Electric received a decision from the
AEUB approving its requested interim refundable rates for distribution operations. On September 7, 2005, ATCO
Electric received a decision from the AEUB approving an interim refundable rate increase of $5.0 million for
transmission operations. Revenues associated with the interim refundable rates for the nine months ended
September 30, 2005 were recognized in the third quarter.

In May 2005, ATCO Gas filed a general rate application with the AEUB for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test years
. requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and operating costs
associated with increased rate base in Alberta. A decision from the AEUB on the general tariff application is not
expected until early in 2006." In June 2005, ATCO Gas filed an application requesting interim refundable rates
pending the AEUB’s decision on the general rate application. On August 28, 2005, ATCO Gas received a decision
from the AEUB approving an interim refundable rate increase, to be collected from northern customers, of
$7.0 million. Revenues associated with the interim refundable rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2005
were recognized in the third quarter.

6. Guarantees

ATCO Power has financed its non-regulated electrical generating capacity on a non-recourse basis. In these
projects, the lender’s recourse in the event of default is limited to the business and assets of the project in question,
which includes the Corporation’s equity therein. Canadian Utilities Limited has provided a number of guarantees
related to ATCO Power’s obligations under non-recourse loans associated with certain of its projects. These
guarantees remain substantially unchanged from the disclosure contained in the 2004 annual consolidated financial
statements, except for:

¢) Equity contributions — Represents equity funding requirements needed to complete construction of the project

being built. At September 30, 2005, there are no further obligations under this guarantee for the Brighton
Beach project financing.
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6. Guarantees (continued)

b) Construction liens — Represents liens currently regisiered against project assets. Effective September 30,
2005, ATCO Power entered into an indemnity agreement with Brighton Beach Power Ltd. obligating it to cover
-any cash shortfalls associated with clearirg the constriction liens registered against the project. This agreement
atlowed the project to achieve financial completion under the terms of the project financing agreement. The
maximum amount of the indemnity is $20 million. Canadian Utilities Limited issued a guarantee to Brighton
Beach Power Ltd. guaranteeing the payments under the indemnity agreement. The indemnity and the guarantee
are reduced as the liens are settled.

To date, Canadian 1Jti"ties Limited has not been required to pay any of its guaranteed obligations.
7. TXI1j Europe settlement

On November 19, 2002, an administraiion order was issucd 0y au Eunglish Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited which had a long term “off take” agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by the
1,000 megawatt Barking generating nlant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking Power
Limited {"Barking Power™), has a 25.5% equity interest. Barking Powcr had filed a claim for damages for breach of
contract related to TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating
nlant. Fellowing negetigtions with the administrators, ar agreement hae now been reached with respect to Barking
Power’s claim,

On March 30, 2005, the Corporation announced that Barking Power will receive £179.3 million (approximately
$410 million) in settlement of its claim, of which the Corporation’s share is approximately $104 million. Barking
Power received a first distribution of £112.3 million (approximately $257 million) on March 30, 2005, of which the
Corporation’s share was $65.4 million. Income taxes of approximately $17.7 million relating to this distribution
have been paid. A second distribution of £32.2 million (approximately $69.6 million) was received on August 2,
2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $17.7 million. Income taxes of approximately $5.3 million relating to
the second distribution will be paid as part of the Corporation’s normal tax installments. A final distribution is
expected in the first quarter of 2006.

Based on the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at March 30, 2005, the Corporation’s share of this settlement
is expected to generate earnings after income taxes of approximately $69 million, which will be recognized over the
remaining term of the TXU Europe contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $11 million per year. These
earnings will be dependent upon foreign currency exchange rates in effect at the time that the eamings are
recognized.

8. Segmented information

Segmented results — Three months ended September 30

2005 Power Global Corporate  Intersegment
2004 Utilities . Generation  Enterprises and Other  Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues — external $215.8 $188.7 $132.6 $ 03 s - $537.4
$190.1 $156.1 $184.1 $02 $ - $530.5
Revenues — intersegment 6.0 - 28.1 2.8 (36.9) -
4.1 - 26.2 1.7 (32.0) -
Revenues $221.8 $188.7 $160.7 $ 31 $(36.9) $537.4
$194.2 $156.1 $210.3 $ 1.9 $(32.0) $530.5
Earnings attributable :
to Class A and Class B $ 134 S 222 S 169 $G6.7) 3 (0.3) $ 46.5
shares $ 10.3 $ 18.4 $ 18.6 $(3.6) $ 03 $ 44.0
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8. Segmented information (continued)

Segmented results — Nine months ended September 30

Corporate  Intersegment

2008 "~ Power Global

2004 Utilities  Generation - Enterprises and Other  Eliminaticns ~ Consolidated
Revenues — external $ 8744 $ 553.5 $406.7 $ 09 $ - $1,835.5
$1,477.8 $ 4693 $426.5 $ 03 $ - $2,374.4

Revenues - intersegment 16.0 ~ 78.6 8.3 (182.9) -
14.1 - 305.4 6.9 (326.4) -

Revenues $ 890.4 § 5535 $485.3 $ 9.2 $(102.9) $1,835.5
$1,491.9 $ 469.3 $731.9 $ 77 $(326.4) $2,374 .4

Earnings attributable o . .
toClassAandClassB § 735 § 669  § 528 $(16.0) $ 0.7 $ 176.5
shares $ 130.2 $ 559  §$413 $(11.2) $§ 25 $ 218.7
Total assets $3.382.5 . $2,1988 $294.7 $484.0 $ (22,9 $6,337.1
$3,265.4 $2,191.9 $298.3 $434.7 $ 194 $6,209.7
Printed in Canada
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CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(Millions of Canadian Dollars except per share data)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Revenues 2 $ 5374 $ 530.5 $1,835.5 $2,374.4
Costs and expenses

Natural gas supply : 2 8.3 532 143.9 808.1
Purchased power 2 10.4 8.8 33.2 80.4
Operation and maintenance 248.4 220.5 741.9 637.1
Selling and administrative 45.9 375 133.1 114.7
Depreciation and amortization 70.5 66.1 227.0 210.3
Interest 38.1 36.8 119.3 114.7
Interest on non-recourse long term debt 12.8 135 393 36.1
Franchise fees 20.9 18.9 102.8 95.9
455.3 455.3 1,540.5 2,097.3
82.1 752 295.0 2771
Gain on transfer of retail energy supply businesses 2 - - - 63.3
Interest and other income 83 7.4 26.0 20.4
Earnings before income taxes 90.4 82.6 321.0 360.8
Income taxes 34.9 29.6 117.6 115.2
55.5 53.0 203.4 245.6
Dividends on equity preferred shares 9.0 9.0 26.9 26.9
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares 2 46.5 44.0 176.5 218.7
Retained earnings at beginning of period 1,661.4 1,540.0 1,603.4 1,435.4
1,707.9 1,584.0 1,779.9 1,654.1
Dividends on Class A and Class B shares 34.9 336 104.7 100.8
Purchase of Class A shares 2.6 2.1 4.8 5.0
Retained earnings at end of period $1,670.4 $1,548.3 $1,670.4 $1,548.3
Earnings per Class A and Class B share 3 $ 037 $ 035 $ 139 $ 173
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share 3 $ 037 $ 035 $ 139 $ 172
Dividends paid per Class A and Class B share 3 $ 0275 $ 0.265 $ 0.825 $ 0.795




CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Millions of Canadian Dollars)

September 30 December 31
Note 2005 2004 2004
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and short term investments 7 $ 696.8 $ 5595 $ 699.5
Accounts receivable 281.4 336.9 372.8
Inventories 79.1 162.2 172.9
Future income taxes 0.1 - 0.3
Deferred electricity costs 34 - -
Prepaid expenses 28.7 33.3 24.5
1,089.5 1,091.9 1,270.0
Property, plant and equipment 5,099.6 4,974.1 5,045.3
Security deposits for debt 20.5 229 23.1
Other assets 127.5 120.8 124.7
$6,337.1 $6,209.7 $6,463.1
LIABILITIES AND SHARE OWNERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Bank indebtedness $ - $ - $ 12
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 270.6 284.7 2843
Income taxes payable 6.1 4.1 42.6
Future income taxes - 12.8 -
Deferred natural gas cost recoveries - 02 0.9
Deferred electricity cost recoveries - 252 11.7
Notes payable - 96.0 -
Long term debt due within one year - 6.9 53
Non-recourse long term debt due within one year 54.2 47.7 50.6
330.9 4717.6 396.6
Future income taxes 202.0 2235 222.4
Deferred credits 7 219.2 135.9 158.0
Long term debt 2,081.5 1,906.0 2,171.0
Non-recourse long term debt 691.1 770.7 760.9
Equity preferred shares 636.5 636.5 636.5
Class A and Class B share owners' equity
Class A and Class B shares 3 519.2 512.5 5143
Contributed surplus 0.6 0.4 04
Retained earnings 1,670.4 1,548.3 1,603.4
Foreign currency translation adjustment (14.3) (1.7) (0.4)
2,175.9 2,059.5 2,117.7
$6,337.1 $6,209.7 $6,463.1




CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Millions of Canadian Dollars)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Operating activities
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares $ 46.5 $ 4.0 $176.5 $2187
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 70.5 66.1 227.0 210.3
Future income taxes 53 0.6) 7.1 2.5)
Gain on transfer of retail energy supply businesses
- net of income taxes 2 - - - (55.1)
Deferred availability incentives 2.0) 15.8 0.8) (5.3)
TXU Europe settlement - net of income taxes 7 104 - 49.5 -
Other 5.2 3.1 12.2 7.8
Cash flow from operations 135.9 128.4 471.5 373.9
Changes in non-cash working capital 1.0 (46.3) 91.4 133.3
136.9 82.1 562.9 507.2
Investing activities ‘
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (132.7) (122.8) (345.5) (386.4)
Proceeds on transfer of retail energy supply businesses
- net of income taxes 2 - - 434 22.5
Costs on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.7) (3.5) (1.5) (1.9)
Contributions by utility customers for extensions to plant 16.1 11.2 374 40.6
Non-current deferred electricity costs 1.7 2.0 (10.0) 9.9)
Changes in non-cash working capital 0.3) 9.3) (27.8) 4.9
Other 3.1 (0.2) (6.1 @.1)
(122.4) (122.6) (310.1) (344.1)
Financing activities
Change in notes payable - 96.0 - 96.0
Issue of long term debt - - 37.0 239.8
Issue of non-recourse long term debt - - - 10.0
Repayment of long term debt (4.8) (27.0) (131.7) (131.8)
Repayment of non-recourse long term debt (19.2) 17.3) (45.2) (40.4)
Purchase of Class A shares 0.8) (0.8) - (3.2)
Dividends paid to Class A and Class B share owners (34.9) (33.6) (104.7) (100.8)
Changes in non-cash working capital 1.7 (1.0) 2.8 0.1
Other (0.6) 0.6 (1.1) (1.0)
(58.6) 16.9 (242.9) 68.7
Foreign currency translation (6.4) (2.3) (11.4) (0.4)
Cash position @
Increase (decrease) (50.5) 25.9) (1.5) 2314
Beginning of period 747.3 585.4 698.3 328.1
End of period $ 696.8 $559.5 $ 696.8 $559.5

Y Cash position consists of cash and short term investments less current bank indebtedness, and includes
$130.3 million (2004 - $51.8 million) which is only available for use in joint ventures (see Note 7).



CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
(Unaudited, Tabular Amounts in Millions of Canadian Dollars)

1. Financial statement presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes included in the Corporation’s Financial Information contained in its 2004 Annual
Report. These interim financial statements have been prepared using the same accounting policies as used in the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, except as described below.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA”) guideline pertaining to the consolidation of variable interest entities. The guideline requires the
Corporation to identify variable interest entities in which it has an interest, determine whether it is the primary
beneficiary of such entities, and, if so, to consolidate them. This change in accounting had no effect on the
consolidated financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005.

Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the timing of
rate decisions, the consolidated statements of earnings and retained earnings for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2004 are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual basis.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.
2. Transfer of retail energy supply businesses

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Energy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML”), a subsidiary of Centrica plc. Proceeds of the
transfer were $90 million, of which $45 million was paid at closing, and the remainder was paid on May 4, 2005.
Net proceeds, after adjustments related to legal, transition and other deferred costs pertaining to the transfer of the
retail energy supply businesses, resulted in a gain of $63.3 million before income taxes of $8.2 million and increased
earnings by $55.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2004.

The Corporation’s revenues and natural gas supply and purchased power costs after May 4, 2004 were reduced
accordingly for 2004 and thereafter. Subsequent to May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas continued to purchase natural gas on
behalf of DEML until the transfer of the relevant ATCO Gas natural gas purchase contracts to DEML was
completed in September 2004. There will be no ongoing impact on earnings resulting from the transfer of these
businesses as natural gas and electricity have historically been sold to customers on a “no-margin” basis. ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric continue to own and operate the natural gas and electricity distribution systems used to
deliver energy.

3. Class A and Class B shares

In July 2005, the Corporation’s board of directors approved a two-for-one share split of the outstanding Class A and
Class B shares. The share split took the form of a stock dividend whereby share owners received one additional
Class A share for each Class A share held as of the record date and one additional Class B share for each Class B
share held as of the record date. The stock dividend was paid on September 15, 2005 to share owners of record at
the close of business on August 29, 2005. All share, stock option and per share amounts have been retroactively
restated to reflect this share split.

There were 82,935,386 (2004 - 82,346,086) Class A non-voting shares and 44,017,784 (2004 — 44,380,384) Class B
common shares outstanding on September 30, 2005. In addition, there were 1,420,200 options to purchase Class A
non-voting shares outstanding at September 30, 2005 under the Corporation’s stock option plan. From October 1,
2005, to October 24, 2005, no stock options were granted, no stock options were exercised, no stock options were
cancelled and no Class A non-voting shares have been purchased under the Corporation’s normal course issuer bid.



3. Class A and Class B shares (continued)

The average number of shares used to calculate earnings per share are as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2008 2004 2005 2004
Weighted average shares outstanding 126,905,641 126,697,534 126,892,482 126,771,518
Effect of dilutive stock options 592,433 482,988 498,907 534,744
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 127,498,074 127,180,522 127,391,389 127,306,262

4. Employee future benefits

In the three months ended September 30, 2005, net expense of $1.9 miilion (2004 — $0.9 million) was recognized for
pension benefit plans and net expense of $1.1 million (2004 — $0.8 million) was recognized for other post
employment benefit plans.

In the nine months ended September 30, 2005, net expense of $5.8 million (2004 — $1.4 million) was recognized for
pension benefit plans and net expense of $3.4 million (2004 — $2.9 million) was recognized for other post
employment benefit plans.

5. Regulatory matters

In May 2005, ATCO Electric filed a general tariff application with the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board
{(“AEUB”) for the 2005 and 2006 test years requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased
financing, depreciation and operating costs associated with increased rate base in Alberta. A decision from the
AEUB on the general tariff application is not expected until early in 2006. In May and June 2005, ATCO Electric
filed applications requesting interim refundable rates for distribution and transmission operations, pending the
AEUB'’s decision on the general tariff application. On July 14, 2005, ATCO Electric received a decision from the
AEUB approving its requested interim refundable rates for distribution operations. On September 7, 2005, ATCO
Electric received a decision from the AEUB approving an interim refundable rate increase of $5.0 million for
transmission operations. Revenues associated with the interim refundable rates for the nine months ended
September 30, 2005 were recognized in the third quarter.

In May 2005, ATCO Gas filed a general rate application with the AEUB for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test years
requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and operating costs
associated with increased rate base in Alberta. A decision from the AEUB on the general tariff application is not
expected until early in 2006. In June 2005, ATCO Gas filed an application requesting interim refundable rates
pending the AEUB’s decision on the general rate application. On August 28, 2005, ATCO Gas received a decision
from the AEUB approving an interim refundable rate increase, to be collected from northern customers, of
$7.0 million. Revenues associated with the interim refundable rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2005
were recognized in the third quarter.

6. Guarantees

ATCQO Power has financed its non-regulated electrical generating capacity on a non-recourse basis. In these
projects, the lender’s recourse in the event of default is limited to the business and assets of the project in question,
which includes the Corporation’s equity therein. Canadian Utilities Limited has provided a number of guarantees
related to ATCO Power’s obligations under non-recourse loans associated with certain of its projects. These
guarantees remain substantially unchanged from the disclosure contained in the 2004 annual consolidated financial
statements, except for:

a) Equity contributions — Represents equity funding requirements needed to complete construction of the project
being built. At September 30, 2005, there are no further obligations under this guarantee for the Brighton
Beach project financing.



6. Guarantees (continued)

b) Construction liens ~ Represents liens currently registered against project assets. Effective September 30,
2005, ATCO Power entered into an indemnity agreement with Brighton Beach Power Ltd. obligating it to cover
any cash shortfalls associated with clearing the construction liens registered against the project. This agreement
allowed the project to achieve financial completion under the terms of the project financing agreement. The
maximum amount of the indemnity is $20 million. Canadian Utilities Limited issued a guarantee to Brighton
Beach Power Ltd. guaranteeing the payments under the indemnity agreement. The indemnity and the guarantee
are reduced as the liens are settled.

To date, Canadian Utilities Limited has not been required to pay any of its guaranteed obligations.
7. TXU Europe settlement

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited which had a long term “off take” agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by the
1,000 megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking Power
Limited (“Barking Power”), has a 25.5% equity interest. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of
contract related to TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating
plant. Following negotiations with the administrators, an agreement has now been reached with respect to Barking
Power’s claim.

On March 30, 2005, the Corporation announced that Barking Power will receive £179.3 million (approximately
$410 million) in settlement of its claim, of which the Corporation’s share is approximately $104 million. Barking
Power received a first distribution of £112.3 million (approximately $257 million) on March 30, 2005, of which the
Corporation’s share was $65.4 million. Income taxes of approximately $17.7 million relating to this distribution
have been paid. A second distribution of £32.2 million (approximately $69.6 million) was received on August 2,
2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $17.7 million. Income taxes of approximately $5.3 million relating to
the second distribution will be paid as part of the Corporation’s normal tax installments. A final distribution is
expected in the first quarter of 2006.

Based on the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at March 30, 2005, the Corporation’s share of this settlement
is expected to generate earnings after income taxes of approximately $69 million, which will be recognized over the
remaining term of the TXU Europe contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $11 million per year. These
earnings will be dependent upon foreign currency exchange rates in effect at the time that the earnings are
recognized.

8. Segmented information

Segmented results — Three months ended September 30

2005 Power Global Corporate  Intersegment
2004 Utilities  Generation  Enterprises  and Other  Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues ~ external $215.8 $188.7 $132.6 $03 $ - $537.4
$190.1 $156.1 $184.1 $02 $ - $530.5
Revenues — intersegment 6.0 - 28.1 2.8 (36.9) -
4.1 - 26.2 1.7 (32.0) -
Revenues $221.8 $188.7 $160.7 $ 3.1 $(36.9) $537.4
$194.2 $156.1 $210.3 $19 $(32.0) $530.5
Earnings attributable
to Class A and Class B $ 13.4 $ 222 $ 16.9 $(5.7) $ (0.3) $ 46.5
shares $ 10.3 $ 184 $ 18.6 $(3.6) $ 0.3 $ 440




8. Segmented information (continued)

Segmented results — Nine months ended September 30

2005 Power Global Corporate  Intersegment
2004 Utilities  Generation  Enterprises _and Other  Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues — external $ 8744 $ 553.5 $406.7 $ 09 $ - $1,835.5
$1,477.8 $ 4693 $426.5 $ 08 $ - $2,374.4
Revenues - intersegment 16.0 - 78.6 8.3 (102.9) -
14.1 - 305.4 6.9 (326.4) -
Revenues $ 890.4 $ 5535 $485.3 $ 92 $(102.9) $1,835.5
$1,491.9 $ 469.3 $731.9 $ 77 $(326.4) $2,374.4

Earnings attributable

toClass Aand ClassB $ 735  § 669 $ 52.8 $(16.0) $ (0.7) $ 176.5
shares $ 1302 $ 559 $ 413 $(11.2) $ 25 $ 218.7
Total assets $3,382.5 $2,198.8 $294.7 $484.0 $ (22.9) $6,337.1
$3,265.4 $2,191.9 $298.3 $434.7 $ 194 $6,209.7
7 cu
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CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A”")

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations of Canadian Utilities Limited
(the “Corporation”) should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s unaudited interim financial statements for
the nine months ended September 30, 2005, and the audited financial statements and management’s discussion and
analysis of financial condition and results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 (“2004 MD&A™).
Information contained in the 2004 MD&A that is not discussed in this document remains substantially unchanged.
Additional information relating to the Corporation, including the Corporation’s Annual Information Form, is
available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

The common share capital of the Corporation consists of Class A non-voting shares (“Class A shares”) and Class B
common shares (“Class B shares™).
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements contained in this MD&A constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are
often, but not always, identified by the use of words such as “anticipate”, “plan”, “estimate”, “expect”, “may”,
“will”, “intend”, “should”, and similar expressions. These statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in
such forward-looking statements. The Corporation believes that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking
statements are reasonable, but no assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct and such

forward-looking statements should not be unduly relied upon.

In particular, this MD&A contains forward-looking statements pertaining to the impact of changes in government
regulation and non-regulated generating capacity subject to long term contracts. The Corporation’s actual results
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could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of regulatory decisions,
competitive factors in the industries in which the Corporation operates, prevailing economic conditions, and other
factors, many of which are beyond the control of the Corporation.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation’s financial statements are consolidated from three Business Groups: Utilities, Power Generation
and Global Enterprises. For the purposes of financial disclosure, corporate transactions are accounted for as
Corporate and Other (refer to Note 8 to the unaudited interim financial statements for the nine months ended
September 30, 2005). Transactions between Business Groups are eliminated in all reporting of the Corporation’s
consolidated financial information.

TWO FOR ONE SHARE SPLIT

In July 2005, the Corporation’s board of directors approved a two-for-one share split of the outstanding Class A and
Class B shares. The share split took the form of a stock dividend whereby share owners received one additional
Class A share for each Class A share held as of the record date and one additional Class B share for each Class B
share held as of the record date. The stock dividend was paid on September 15, 2005 to share owners of record at
the close of business on August 29, 2005. All share, stock option and per share amounts have been retroactively
restated to reflect this share split.

TRANSFER OF THE RETAIL ENERGY SUPPLY BUSINESSES

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Energy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML”), a subsidiary of Centrica plc (“Transfer of the
Retail Energy Supply Businesses”). Proceeds of the transfer were $90 million, of which $45 million was paid at
closing, and the remainder was paid on May 4, 2005. Net proceeds, after adjustments related to legal, transition and
other deferred costs pertaining to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, resulted in a gain of $63.3
million before income taxes of $8.2 million, and increased earnings by $55.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2004.

The Corporation’s revenues and natural gas supply and purchased power costs after May 4, 2004, were reduced
accordingly for 2004 and thereafter. Subsequent to May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas continued to purchase natural gas on
behalf of DEML until the transfer of the relevant ATCO Gas natural gas purchase contracts to DEML was
completed in September 2004. There will be no ongoing impact on earnings resulting from the transfer of these
businesses as natural gas and electricity have historically been sold to customers on a “no-margin” basis. ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric continue to own and operate the natural gas and electricity distribution systems used to
deliver energy.

TXU EUROPE SETTLEMENT

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited (“TXU Europe”) which had a long term “off take” agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by
the 1,000 megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking Power
Limited (“Barking Power”), has a 25.5% equity interest. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of
contract related to TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating
plant. Following negotiations with the administrators, an agreement has now been reached with respect to Barking
Power’s claim. On March 30, 2005, the Corporation announced that Barking Power will receive £179.3 million
(approximately $410 million) in settlement of its claim, of which the Corporation’s share is approximately $104
million. Barking Power received a first distribution of £112.3 million (approximately $257 million) on March 30,
2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $65.4 million. Income taxes of approximately $17.7 million relating to
this distribution have been paid. A second distribution of £32.2 million (approximately $69.6 million) was received
on August 2, 2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $17.7 million. Income taxes of approximately $5.3 million
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relating to the second distribution will be paid as part of the Corporation’s normal tax installments. A final
distribution is expected in the first quarter of 2006.

Based on the foreign currency exchange rates in effect on March 30, 2005, the Corporation’s share of this settlement
is expected to generate earnings after income taxes of approximately $69 million, which will be recognized over the
remaining term of the TXU contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $11 million per year. These earnings
will be dependent upon the foreign currency exchange rates in effect at the time the earnings are recognized.

The Barking generating plant has continued to supply 725 megawatts of power under long term contracts with other
purchasers. The 275 megawatts of power previously supplied to TXU Europe is currently being sold into the United
Kingdom electricity market on a merchant basis under a one year marketing agreement expiring September 30,
2006. The majority of the 275 megawatts has been sold forward under this agreement through the end of March
2006.

SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION

For the Three Months Ended

($ Millions except per share data) Mar. 31 Jun. 30 Sep. 30 Dec. 31
(unaudited)
2005
ReVENUES (1) iviiiriiiiiriieiiiiiee et tre e s nraee s rare e e s srrr e s 745.2 552.9 5374
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares (4) (5) ........ 80.0 50.0 46.5 e
Earnings per Class A and Class B share (4) (5} .ccocovrvrncencinnnnn, 0.63 0.39 037
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share (4) (5).....ccevee 0.63 0.39 037
2004
REVENUES (1) oiiieiiiciiiiecieis e sttt aabse e sre e enes 1,169.2 674.7 530.5 637.1
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares (2) (4) (5)... 74.5 100.2 44.0 90.3
Earnings per Class A and Class B share (2) (4) (5)..cccvivvviiinnnens 0.59 0.79 0.35 0.71
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share (2) (4) (5) ......... 0.59 0.78 0.35 071
2003
REVEIMUES ..ot rrcaeess aesireeeesirene ersersesreneens teseosneeenanne 937.9
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares (3) (4) (5) ... cvvviiicins i e 86.5
Earnings per Class A and Class B share (3) (4) (5).ccccoviinnicns vriiiiiiies e i 0.68
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share (3) (4) (5) cccovcves vrvivicnicnies s e 0.68
Notes:

(1) Prior to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and
electricity purchased for ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for their customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.

(2) Includes earnings of $55.1 million, earnings per share of $0.44 and diluted earnings per share of $0.43 on the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses for the three months ended June 30, 2004.

(3) 2003 earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares have been restated for retroactive changes in the
methods of accounting for asset retirement obligations and stock based compensation.

(4) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

{5) Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the
timing of rate decisions, earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

(6) The above data has been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and
the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The principal factors that have caused variations in revenues and earnings over the eight most recently completed
quarters necessary to understand general trends that have developed and the seasonality of the businesses disclosed
in the 2004 MD&A remain substantially unchanged, except for changes in market conditions which have impacted
ATCO Midstream’s earnings from natural gas liquids and storage operations.

Consolidated Operations

Revenues, earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares, and earnings and diluted earnings per share were as
follows:

For the Three For the Nine
Months Ended Months Ended
September 30 September 30
($ Millions except per share data) 2005 2004 2005 2004
(unaudited)
Revenues (1) .ovcovoiiiiie ettt 537.4 530.5 1,835.5 2,3744
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares (2) (3) 4)....... 46.5 44.0 176.5 218.7
Earnings per Class A share and Class B share (2) (3) (4)....c.oeenee 0.37 0.35 1.39 1.73
Diluted earnings per Class A share and Class B share (2) (3) (4).... 0.37 0.35 1.39 1.72

Notes:

(1) Prior to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and
electricity purchased for ATCO Gas' and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for their customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.

(2) Includes earnings of $55.1 million, earnings per share of $0.44 and diluted earnings per share of $0.43 on the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses for the nine months ended September 30, 2004.

(3) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

(4) Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the
timing of rate decisions, earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

(5) The above data has been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and
the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.

Revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $6.9 million to $537.4 million, primarily
due to:

¢ natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no margin” basis and improved merchant performance in ATCO
Power’s United Kingdom (“U.K.”) operations and the impact of the TXU Europe settlement;

¢ impact of the interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas (refer to Regulatory
Matters -~ ATCO Electric and ATCQO Gas sections);

»  higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold;

e 2004 one time impact of the finalization of natural gas supply costs related to the Transfer of the Retail
Energy Supply Businesses; and

e 2004 one time impact of 2004 General Rate Application adjustments for ATCO Gas related to the refund of
deferred income taxes.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream;
and
e lower business activity in ATCO Frontec.



Revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $538.9 million to $1,835.5 million,
primarily due to:
e lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004; and
s lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.
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This decrease was partially offset by:

o natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no margin” basis and improved merchant performance in ATCO
Power’s U.K. operations and the impact of the TXU Europe settlement;

e higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold;

¢ increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek; and

¢ operations at ATCO Power’s 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant commissioned in July 2004.

Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased
by $2.5 million to $46.5 million, primarily due to:
e impact of the TXU Europe settlement;
¢ improved performance in ATCO Power’s Alberta generating plants;
¢ interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas approved by the AEUB for 2005
recognized in the third quarter which offset higher costs incurred in 2005 in ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric
that are not yet fully reflected in current customer rates. The majority of these cost increases are for higher
depreciation and financing costs related to rate base additions in late 2004 and to date in 2005, and
increased operating costs. Rate applications were filed in May 2005 requesting the AEUB to incorporate
these higher costs in customer rates (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas
sections); and
o higher storage earnings due to increased storage capacity sold in ATCO Midstream. The additional storage
capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ lower volumes and higher shrinkage costs for natural gas liquids in ATCO Midstream; and
e higher maintenance and general and administration costs in Alberta Power (2000) operations.

Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, were $176.5
million ($1.39 per share). Earnings for the corresponding period in 2004 were $163.6 million ($1.29 per share),
excluding the $55.1 million after-tax gain on the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004.
Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2004, including the impact of the Transfer of the Retail Energy
Supply Businesses, were $218.7 million ($1.73 per share).

Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, excluding
the impact of the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, increased by $12.9 million, primarily due to:

e impact of the TXU Europe settlement and improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s UK.
operations;

e higher storage earnings due to higher fees and increased storage capacity sold in ATCO Midstream. The
additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage
capacity sold;

* increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek; and

¢ impact of the AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in deferred
income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters —~ ATCO Electric section).

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ higher costs incurred in 2005 in ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric that are not yet fully reflected in interim
customer rates. The majority of these cost increases are for higher depreciation and financing costs related
to rate base additions in late 2004 and to date in 2005, and increased operating costs. Rate applications
were filed in May 2005 requesting the AEUB to incorporate these higher costs in customer rates (refer to
Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas sections);
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e increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Ltd. Class I Non-Voting share prices since December 31, 2004,

® decrease in ATCO Power’s earnings of $3.0 million due to lower spark spreads realized on electricity sold
to the Alberta Power Pool; and

e warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

Operating expenses (consisting of natural gas supply, purchased power, operation and maintenance, selling and
administrative and franchise fee costs) for the three months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $5.0 million to
$333.9 million, primarily due to:

¢ lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

This decreases was partially offset by:
¢ higher fuel costs at ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant due to natural gas fuel purchases recovered on
a “no margin” basis; and
e higher natural gas liquids shrinkage costs in ATCO Midstream due to higher natural gas prices.

Operating expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $581.3 million to $1,154.9
million, primarily due to:
e lower costs of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004; and
¢  lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

This decrease was partially offset by:
o higher fuel costs at ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant due to natural gas fuel purchases recovered on
a “no margin” basis; and
* higher natural gas liquids shrinkage costs in ATCO Midstream due to higher natural gas prices.

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, increased by
$4.4 million to $70.5 million, and by $16.7 million to $227.0 million, respectively, primarily due to:
e capital additions in 2005 and 2004.

Interest expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $0.6 million to $50.9
million, and by $7.8 million to $158.6 million, respectively, primarily due to:
¢ interest on non-recourse financings for ATCO Power’s Brighton Beach generating plant commissioned in
July 2004; and
* interest on new financings issued in 2004 to fund capital expenditures in Utilities operations.

Interest and other income for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $0.9 million to $8.3
million, primarily due to:
e interest income on higher cash balances.

Interest and other income for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $5.6 million to $26.0
million, primarily due to:
¢ interest income on higher cash balances; and
e the recovery of ATCO Electric’s carrying costs and interest associated with the AEUB decision adjusting
the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in deferred income taxes (refer to Regulatory Matters
— ATCO Electric section).

Income taxes for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $5.3 million to $34.9 million, primarily
due to:

e favorable one-time tax adjustment in 2004 for ATCO Gas resulting from a change in income tax
methodology as directed by the AEUB in its decision respecting ATCO Gas’ 2003/2004 General Rate
Application; and

¢ higher earnings.



Income taxes for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, including the $8.2 million of income taxes resulting
from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004, increased by $2.4 million to $117.6 million.

Income taxes for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, excluding the $8.2 million of income taxes resulting
from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, increased by $10.6 million to $117.6 million, primarily
due to:

e  higher earnings.

Segmented Information

Segmented revenues for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, were as follows:

For the Three For the Nine
Months Ended Months Ended
September 30 September 30
($ Millions) 2005 2004 2005 2004
(unaudited)
UBHEES (1) 1veriieiiecnienrierireriesiessersesieresiassasecensesesssesssassessesesssenses 221.8 194.2 890.4 1,491.9
PoWer GENETAtiON .vvvicvieirirriieirirreeiirereevnresesrresaineessineesrsenesssnnenas 188.7 156.1 553.5 469.3
Global ERLEIPIiSES ...oovvevereieriecireieerietenie et et raene e 160.7 210.3 485.3 731.9
Corporate and Other........ccovveciviiciiii s 31 1.9 9.2 7.7
Intersegment eliMinAatioNS.........oocoverieiiemierieniereaerienrenrerresnensecenies (36.9) (32.0) (102.9) (326.4)
1 e 721 P OO DT T TP ST PPRRUTRUPIt 537.4 530.5 1,835.5 2,374.4

Note:

(1) Prior to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and
electricity purchased for ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for their customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.

Segmented earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the three and nine months ended September
30, 2005, were as follows:

For the Three For the Nine
Months Ended Months Ended
September 30 September 30
($ Millions) 2005 2004 2005 2004
(unaudited)
UHHHES (1) ereueeeereirerrerreieiieinies e et e e cre et ee e es e eme b neens 13.4 103 73.5 130.2
POWET GENETALION ..ovveerieeiriiriiiiieieceieriesnerese e nieree e i seesnesnessons 22.2 18.4 66.9 55.9
Global ENerpriSes ......ocovirererveieriicerenc et 16.9 18.6 52.8 41.3
Corporate and OhET.....ccoovrerurircrereesnsereeseereesarssassarsesersasnseas (5.7) (3.6) (16.0) (11.2)
Intersegment eliminations........co.coovvvcveerieeiierieneneireenerseeren e 0.3) 0.3 0.7) 2.5
TOUAL ettt ettt 46.5 44.0 176.5 218.7

Note:
(1) Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2004, include earnings of $55.1 million from the Transfer
of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses.

Utilities

Revenues from the Utilities Business Group for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $27.6
million to $221.8 million, primarily due to:
e impact of the interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas (refer to Regulatory
Matters — ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas sections);
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e 2004 one time impact of the finalization of natural gas supply costs related to the Transfer of the Retail
Energy Supply Businesses; and

¢ 2004 one time impact of 2004 General Rate Application adjustments for ATCO Gas related to the refund of
deferred income taxes.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ lower natural gas volumes purchased for ATCO Pipelines’ customers as a result of customers moving from
sales service (commodity and transportation revenues) to transportation service only contracts
(transportation revenue).

Temperatures in ATCO Gas for the three months ended September 30, 2005, were 27.3% colder than normal,
compared to 15.8% colder than normal for the corresponding period in 2004.

Revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $601.5 million to $890.4 million, primarily
due to:
e lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004,
¢ lower natural gas volumes purchased for ATCO Pipelines’ customers as a result of customers moving from
sales service (commodity and transportation revenues) to transportation service only contracts
(transportation revenue); and
e warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas, which were 3.8% warmer than normal, compared to 1.3% colder than
normal for the corresponding period in 2004.

This decrease was partially offset by:

s impact of the interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas (refer to Regulatory
Matters — ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas sections);

¢ higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas;

¢  higher transmission revenue as a result of increased rate base in 2004 due to higher capital expenditures in
ATCO Electric;

¢ customer additions in ATCO Gas; and

¢ impact of the AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in deferred
income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section).

Earnings for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $3.1 million to $13.4 million, primarily due
to:

s interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas approved by the AEUB for 2005
recognized in the third quarter which offset higher costs incurred in 2005 in ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric
that are not yet fully reflected in current customer rates. The majority of these cost increases are for higher
depreciation and financing costs related to rate base additions in late 2004 and to date in 2005, and
increased operating costs. Rate applications were filed in May 2005 requesting the AEUB to incorporate
these higher costs in customer rates (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas
sections).

Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, were $73.5 million. FEarnings for the corresponding
period in 2004 were $75.1 million, excluding the $55.1 million after-tax gain on the Transfer of the Retail Energy
Supply Businesses in May 2004. Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2004, including the impact of
the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, were $130.2 million.

Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, excluding the impact of the Transfer of the Retail Energy
Supply Businesses, decreased by $1.6 million, primarily due to:
¢ higher costs incurred in 2005 in ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric that are not yet fully reflected in interim
customer rates. The majority of these cost increases are for higher depreciation and financing costs related
to rate base additions in late 2004 and to date in 2005, and increased operating costs. Rate applications
were filed in May 2005 requesting the AEUB to incorporate these higher costs in customer rates (refer to
Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas sections); and
¢ warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.



This decrease was partially offset by:
e impact of the AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in deferred
income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section); and
e customer additions in ATCO Gas.

Power Generation

Revenues from the Power Generation Business Group for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005,
increased by $32.6 million to $188.7 million and by $84.2 million to $553.5 million, respectively, primarily due to:
¢ natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no margin” basis and improved merchant performance in ATCO
Power’s United Kingdom (“U.K.”) operations and the impact of the TXU Europe settlement; and
e operations at ATCO Power’s 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant commissioned in July 2004.

Earnings for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $3.8 million to $22.2 million, primarily due
to:

¢ impact of the TXU Europe settlement;

» improved performance in ATCO Power’s Alberta generating plants; and

e operations at ATCO Power’s 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant commissioned in July 2004.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ higher maintenance and general and administration costs in Alberta Power (2000) operations;
e decrease in ATCO Power’s earnings of $1.4 million due to lower spark spreads realized on electricity sold
to the Alberta Power Pool.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the three months ended September 30, 2003, averaged $66.91 per
megawatt hour, compared to average prices of $54.33 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in
2004. Natural gas prices for the three months ended September 30, 2005, averaged $8.81 per gigajoule,
compared to average prices of $5.90 per gigajoule for the corresponding period in 2004. The consequence
of these changes in electricity and natural gas prices was an average spark spread of $0.85 per megawatt
hour for the three months ended September 30, 2005, compared to $10.08 per megawatt hour for the
corresponding period in 2004. The impact of the lower spark spreads was mitigated by lower generation
volumes in 2005.

Spark spread is related to the difference between Alberta Power Pool electricity prices and the marginal
cost of producing electricity from natural gas.

Changes in spark spread affect the results of approximately 300 megawatts of plant capacity owned in
Alberta by ATCO Power out of a total world wide owned capacity of approximately 1,318 megawatts.

Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $11.0 million to $66.9 million, primarily due
to:
¢ impact of the TXU Europe settlement and improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s UK.
operations; and
¢ operations at ATCO Power’s 580 megawatt Brighton Beach generating plant commissioned in July 2004.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ decrease in ATCO Power’s earnings of $3.0 million due to lower spark spreads realized on electricity sold
to the Alberta Power Pool,
impact of favorable one-time income tax adjustments in 2004; and
*  higher maintenance and general and administration costs in Alberta Power (2000) operations.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, averaged $54.79 per
megawatt hour, compared to average prices of $54.43 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in
2004. Natural gas prices for the nine months ended September 30, 2003, averaged $7.44 per gigajoule,
compared to average prices of $6.20 per gigajoule for the corresponding period in 2004. The consequence
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of these changes in electricity and natural gas prices was an average spark spread of $(1.01) per megawatt
hour for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, compared to $7.93 per megawatt hour for the
corresponding period in 2004. The impact of the lower spark spreads was mitigated by lower generation
volumes in 2005.

During the three months ended September 30, 2005, Alberta Power (2000)’s deferred availability incentive
account decreased by $2.0 million to $45.3 million. The decrease was due to planned outages and amortization in
excess of additional availability incentives received for plant availability. During the three months ended September
30, 2005, the amortization of deferred availability incentives, recorded in revenues, increased by $0.2 million to $2.2
million as compared to the same period in 2004.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2005, Alberta Power (2000)’s deferred availability incentive account
decreased by $0.8 million to $45.3 million. The decrease was due to planned outages and amortization in excess of
additional availability incentive payments received for plant availability. During the nine months ended September
30, 2005, the amortization of deferred availability incentives, recorded in revenues, increased by $0.6 million to $6.2
million as compared to the same period in 2004.

Global Enterprises

Revenues from the Global Enterprises Business Group for the three months ended September 30, 2005, decreased
by $49.6 million to $160.7 million, primarily due to:
e lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream;
and
¢ lower business activity in ATCO Frontec.

These decreases were partially offset by:
o higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold.

Revenues from the Global Enterprises Business Group for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by
$246.6 million to $485.3 million, primarily due to:
e lower volumes of natural gas purchased in ATCO Midstream for ATCO Gas as a result of the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Businesses; and
¢ lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

These decreases were partially offset by:

e higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream. The additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing
and demand of storage capacity sold; and

¢ increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.

Earnings for the three months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $1.7 million to $16.9 million, primarily due
to:
o lower volumes and higher shrinkage costs for natural gas liquids in ATCO Midstream.

These decreases were partially offset by:
¢ higher storage earnings due to increased storage capacity sold in ATCO Midstream. The additional storage
capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold; and
e increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.

Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $11.5 million to $52.8 million, primarily due
to:
¢ higher storage earnings due to higher fees and increased storage capacity sold in ATCO Midstream. The
additional storage capacity is attributable to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage
capacity sold; and

e increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.
Cu
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Corporate and Other

Earnings for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005 decreased by $2.1 million to $(5.7) million and
by $4.8 million to ${16.0) million, respectively, primarily due to:
e increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Ltd. Class I Non-Voting share prices since June 30, 2005, and December 31, 2004, respectively.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulated operations are conducted by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, Northland Utilities (NWT), Northland
Utilities (Yellowknife) and Yukon Electrical, the ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines divisions of ATCO Gas and
Pipelines Ltd. and the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000), all of which are wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Corporation’s wholly owned subsidiary, CU Inc.

In July 2004, the AEUB issued its generic cost of capital decision. The decision established a standardized approach
for each utility company regulated by the AEUB for determining the rate of return on common equity based upon a
return of 9.60% on commeon equity. This rate of return will be adjusted annually by 75% of the change in long term
Canada bond yield as forecast in the November Consensus Forecast, adjusted for the average difference between the
10 year and 30 year Canada bond yields for the month of October as reported in the National Post. This adjustment
mechanism is the same as the National Energy Board uses in determining its formula based rate of return. The
AEUB will undertake a review of this mechanism for the year 2009 or if the rate of return resulting from the formula
is less than 7.6% or greater than 11.6%. The AEUB also noted that any party, at any time, could petition for a
review of the adjustment formula if that party can demonstrate a material change in facts or circumstances.

The decision also established the appropriate capital structure for each utility regulated by the AEUB. The AEUB
determined that any proposed changes to the approved capital structure which result from a material change in the
investment risk of a utility will be addressed at utility specific rate applications.

In November 2004, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 9.50% for 2005. The AEUB also
announced that the 2005 generic return on equity would only apply to utilities which file rate applications in 2005.
If no rate applications are filed, then existing return on common equity rates will continue to apply.

In July 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric filed applications with the AEUB addressing the impact on the 2003
and 2004 revenue requirements of the transfer of the retail energy supply business to DEML and the customer care
volume forecast for services provided by ATCO I-Tek Business Services for 2003 and 2004. In April and May
2005, the AEUB issued decisions which resulted in an increase to revenues and earnings of $2.4 million and $1.6
million, respectively.

In June 2005, as part of their rate applications, ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas submitted a filing to the AEUB that
addressed certain common matters. ATCO Pipelines is also a party to this filing as the concerns are common to all
three utilities. This filing included evidence regarding the appropriate ratemaking approach in the determination of
utility revenue requirements as well as treatment of deferred pension costs, executive compensation, head office rent
expense and the continued use of preferred shares as a form of financing for the three utilities. The AEUB is
expected to hear this filing in May 2006 and a decision is expected in the fourth quarter of 2006.

ATCO Electric

In May 2005, ATCO Electric filed a general tariff application with the AEUB for the 2005 and 2006 test years
requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and operating costs
associated with increased rate base in Alberta. A decision from the AEUB on the general tariff application is not
expected until early in 2006. In May and June 2005, ATCO Electric filed applications requesting interim refundable
rates for distribution and transmission operations, pending the AEUB’s decision on the general tariff application.
On July 14, 2005, ATCO Electric received a decision from the AEUB approving its requested interim refundable
rates for distribution operations. On September 7, 2005, ATCO Electric received a decision from the AEUB
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approving an interim refundable rate increase of $5.0 million for transmission operations. Revenues associated with
the interim refundable rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, were recognized in the third quarter.

In August 2002, the AEUB issued a decision in which it denied ATCO Electric’s application to adjust its 2001 and
2002 transmission and distribution revenue requirements by $4.6 million for changes in the amounts of deferred
income taxes recorded. In November 2002, ATCO Electric filed a review and variance application of the August
2002 decision with the AEUB. In May 2005, the AEUB changed its August 2002 decision and allowed ATCO
Electric to increase its revenues and earnings by $4.6 million.

ATCO Gas

In May 2005, ATCO Gas filed a general rate application with the AEUB for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test years
requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and operating costs
associated with increased rate base in Alberta. A decision from the AEUB on the general rate application is not
expected until early in 2006. In June 2005, ATCO Gas filed an application requesting interim refundable rates
pending the AEUB’s decision on the general rate application. On August 28, 2005, ATCO Gas received a decision
from the AEUB approving an interim refundable rate increase, to be collected from northern customers, of $7.0
million. Revenues associated with the interim refundable rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, were
recognized in the third quarter.

In October 2001, the AEUB approved the sale by ATCO Gas of certain properties in the City of Calgary, known as
the Calgary Stores Block, for $6.6 million (excluding costs of disposition) and allocated $4.1 million of the proceeds
to customers and $1.8 million to ATCO Gas. In January 2004, the Alberta Court of Appeal overturned this decision
and directed the AEUB to allocate $5.4 million of the proceeds to ATCO Gas. The City of Calgary has appealed
this decision to the Supreme Court of Canada, which has also granted ATCO Gas leave to cross-appeal the decision.
The Supreme Court of Canada heard the appeal on May 11, 2005 and ATCO Gas is currently awaiting a decision.
Accordingly, ATCO Gas has not yet recorded the impact of the Alberta Court of Appeal decision.

In March 2004, the AEUB directed ATCO Gas to continue to reserve for the benefit of utility customers 16.7
petajoules of storage capacity at its Carbon storage facility for the 2004/2005 storage year, which ended on March
31, 2003, and allowed ATCQO Midstream to continue to utilize the remaining uncontracted capacity at a rate of $0.45
per gigajoule, up from $0.41 per gigajoule. ATCO Gas was granted leave to appeal this AEUB decision to the
Alberta Court of Appeal. On June 17, 2005 the appeal was dismissed. On September 16, 2005, ATCO Gas filed for
leave to appeal the Alberta Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada.

In July 2004, the AEUB initiated a written process to consider its role in regulating the operations of the Carbon
storage facility. On June 15, 2005, the AEUB issued a decision with respect to this process. In addition to
addressing other matters, the decision found that the AEUB has the authority, when necessary in the public interest,
to direct a utility to utilize a particular asset in a specific manner, even over the objection of the utility. ATCO Gas
has filed for leave to appeal the decision with the Alberta Court of Appeal. On October 3, 2005, the AEUB
established processes to review the use of the Carbon Storage Facility for utility purposes.

ATCO Gas’ position is that the Carbon storage facility is no longer required for utility service. Accordingly, in
March 2005, ATCO Gas filed a letter with the AEUB in which it withdrew all evidence previously filed by it with
respect to the 2005/2006 Carbon Storage Plan, thus providing notice that none of the related costs and revenues will
form part of regulated operations on or after April 1, 2005. On March 23, 2005, the AEUB issued an interim order
directing ATCO Gas to maintain the Carbon storage facility in rate base and confirming a lease of the entire storage
capacity to ATCO Midstream at a placeholder rate of $0.45 per gigajoule until otherwise determined by the AEUB.
ATCO Gas filed for leave to appeal the interim order on April 15, 2005.

ATCO Gas has filed an application with the AEUB to address, among other things, corrections required to historical
transportation imbalances that have impacted ATCO Gas’ deferred gas account. In April 2005, the AEUB issued a
decision resulting in a 15% decrease in the transportation imbalance adjustments sought by ATCO Gas. The
decision resulted in a decrease to revenues and earnings of $1.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively. The City of
Calgary has filed for leave to appeal the AEUB’s decision. ATCO Gas has filed a cross appeal of the AEUB’s
decision. The cross appeal is contingent upon the granting of the City of Calgary’s leave to appeal which is
scheduled to be heard in February 2006.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash flow from operations provides a substantial portion of the Corporation’s cash requirements. Additional cash
requirements are met externally through bank borrowings and the issuance of long term and non-recourse debt and
preferred shares. Commercial paper borrowings and short term bank loans are used to provide flexibility in the
timing and amounts of long term financing.

Cash flow from operations for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $7.5 million to $135.9
million, primarily due to:

¢ higher earnings; and

¢ impact of the TXU Europe settlement in ATCO Power.

This increase was partially offset by:
e one time recovery in August 2004 of $10.4 million of availability incentive payments associated with a
force majeure claim for curtailed production of electricity at Alberta Power (2000)’s Battle River
generating plant.

Cash flow from operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $97.6 million to $471.5
million, primarily due to:

¢ impact of the TXU Europe settlement in ATCO Power; and

*  higher earnings.

Investing for the three months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $0.2 million to $122.4 million, primarily
due to:
¢ changes in non-cash working capital in respect of investing activities.

This decrease was partially offset by:
e higher capital expenditures.

Capital expenditures for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased by $9.9 million to $132.7 million,
primarily due to:

e increased investment in regulated natural gas transportation and electric transmission and distribution
projects.

This increase was partially offset by:
* lower investment in power generation projects.

Investing for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $34.0 million to $310.1 million, primarily
due to:

s lower capital expenditures; and

* increased proceeds from Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses.

This decrease was partially offset by:
e changes in non-cash working capital in respect of investing activities.

Capital expenditures for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, decreased by $40.9 million to $345.5 million,
primarily due to:
¢ lower investment in power generation and regulated electric transmission projects.

This decrease was partially offset by:
e increased investment in regulated electric distribution and natural gas transportation and distribution
projects.



During the three months ended September 30, 2005, the Corporation redeemed:
e $4.8 million of long term debt; and
e  $19.2 million of non-recourse long term debt.

These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $24.0 million.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2005, the Corporation issued:
¢  $37.0 million of long term debt.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2003, the Corporation redeemed:
e $125.0 million of 8.43% Debentures 1995 Series;
¢  $6.7 million of other long term debt; and
¢  $45.2 million of non-recourse long term debt.

These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $139.9 million.
Foreign currency translation for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, negatively impacted the
Corporation’s cash position by $4.1 million, and $11.0 million, respectively, primarily as a result of:
e strengthening of the Canadian dollar which resulted in a reduction in the value of cash balances
denominated in U.K. pounds when translated into Canadian dollars.

Contractual obligations disclosed in the 2004 MD& A remain substantially unchanged as at September 30, 2005.

At September 30, 2005, the Corporation had the following credit lines that enable it to obtain funding for general
corporate purposes.

Total Used Available
($ Millions)
Long term committed..........ccooiiiivniiiiniei e s 326.0 474 278.6
Short term COMMULLE ....ecveeeeeiivieeivieiiieee et ccres e are s et eseeoes 600.0 3.0 597.0
UnCOmIMULEEd ..ottt 69.0 6.4 62.6
TOtAL vttt e e e b e et e b et s e et etr e srea e 995.0 56.8 938.2

The amount and timing of future financings will depend on market conditions and the specific needs of the
Corporation.

Net current and long term future income tax liabilities of $201.9 million at September 30, 2005, are attributable
to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. These
differences result primarily from recognizing revenue and expenses in different years for financial and tax reporting
purposes. Future income taxes will become payable when such differences are reversed through the settlement of
liabilities and realization of assets.

On May 20, 2004, the Corporation commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the
outstanding Class A shares. The bid expired on May 19, 2005. Over the life of the bid, 289,800 shares were
purchased, of which 256,800 were purchased in 2004 and 33,000 were purchased in 2005. On May 20, 2005, the
Corporation commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the outstanding Class A shares.
The bid will expire on May 19, 2006. From May 20, 2005, to October 24, 2005, 142,700 shares have been
purchased.

For the first three quarters of 2005, the quarterly dividend payment on the Corporation’s Class A and Class B
shares increased by $0.01 to $0.275 per share. The Corporation has increased its annual common share dividend
each year since its inception as a holding company in 1972. The payment of any dividend is at the discretion of the
Board of Directors and depends on the financial condition of the Corporation and other factors.



OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

At October 24, 2005, the Corporation had outstanding 82,935,386 Class A shares and 44,017,784 Class B shares and
options to purchase 1,420,200 Class A shares.

BUSINESS RISKS

On February 16, 2005, the Kyoto Protocol came into effect. The Corporation is unable to determine what impact the
protocol may have on its operations as the Government of Canada has not yet provided industry specific details for
its 2005 Climate Change Plan. It is anticipated that the Corporation’s power purchase arrangements relating to its
coal-fired generating plants will allow the Corporation to recover any increased costs associated with the
implementation of the protocol.

Regulated Operations

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines are regulated primarily by the AEUB, which administers acts and
regulations covering such matters as rates, financing, accounting, construction, operation and service area. The
AEUB may approve interim rates, subject to final determination. These subsidiaries are subject to the normal risks
faced by companies that are regulated. These risks include the approval by the AEUB of customer rates that permit
a reasonable opportunity to recover on a timely basis the estimated costs of providing service, including a fair return
on rate base. The Corporation’s ability to recover the actual costs of providing service and to earn the approved
rates of return depends on achieving the forecasts established in the rate-setting process.

Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses

Although ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric have transferred to DEML certain retail functions, including the supply of
natural gas and electricity to customers and billing and customer care functions, the legal obligations of ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric remain if DEML fails to perform. In certain events (including where DEML fails to supply
natural gas and/or electricity and ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric are ordered by the AEUB to do so), the
functions will revert to ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer proceeds to DEML by
ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric.

Centrica plc, DEML'’s parent, has provided a $300 million guarantee, supported by a $235 million letter of credit in
respect of DEML’s obligations to ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric and ATCO I-Tek Business Services in respect of the
ongoing relationships contemplated under the transaction agreements. However, there can be no assurance that the
coverage under these agreements will be adequate to cover all of the costs that could arise in the event of a reversion
of such functions.

The Corporation has provided a guarantee of ATCO Gas’, ATCO Electric’s and ATCO I-Tek Business Services’
payment and indemnity obligations in respect of the ongoing relationships to DEML contemplated under the
transaction agreements.

As a result of the agreements with DEML, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric are no longer involved in arranging for
the supply and sale of natural gas and electricity to customers, but will continue to own the assets and provide the
transportation and distribution services under AEUB approved rates that provide for a recovery of costs of service
and a fair return.

Late Payment Penalties on Utility Bills
As a result of recent decisions of the Supreme Court of Canada in Garland vs. Consumers’ Gas Co., the imposition

of late payment penalties on utility bills has been called into question. The Corporation is unable to determine at
this time the impact, if any, that these decisions will have on the Corporation.



Alberta Power (2000)

As a result of unprecedented drought conditions, the water levels in the cooling pond used by the Battle River
generating plant in its production of electricity had fallen to all-time lows in early 2003 and in 2004 and the
Corporation was forced to curtail production of electricity. Water levels in the cooling pond have returned to normal
for this time of year and there has been no curtailment of production to date in 2005.

On June 10, 2005, Alberta Environment announced that it will begin to implement mercury emission standards for
coal-fired generating plants through a new provincial regulation that is expected to be in place in late 2005. Owners
of coal-fired generating plants are required to submit proposals on capturing at least 70% of the mercury in the coal
burned in their plants by March 2007. Technology for mercury emission reduction must be in place by the end of
2010. It is anticipated that the Corporation’s power purchase arrangements relating to its coal-fired generating
plants will allow the Corporation to recover any increased costs associated with complying with the new regulation.

Non-Regulated Operations
ATCO Power
Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads can be very volatile, as shown in

the following graph, which illustrates a range of prices experienced during the period January 2000 to September
2005.

Alberta Power Pool Prices, Natural Gas Prices and Spark Spreads
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Changes in Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads may have a significant
impact on the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from operations in the future. It is the Corporation’s policy to
continually monitor the status of its non-regulated electrical generating capacity that is not subject to long term
commitments.

Brighton Beach Guarantee

ATCO Power has financed its non-regulated electrical generating capacity on a non-recourse basis. In these
projects, the lender’s recourse in the event of default is limited to the business and assets of the project in question,
which includes the Corporation’s equity therein. Canadian Utilities Limited has provided a number of guarantees
related to ATCO Power’s obligations under non-recourse loans associated with certain of its projects. These
guarantees remain substantially unchanged from the disclosure contained in the 2004 MD&A, except for:

a) Equity contributions — Represents equity funding requirements needed to complete construction of the project
being built. At September 30, 2005, there are no further obligations under this guarantee for the Brighton
Beach project financing.

b) Construction Liens ~ Represents liens currently registered against project assets. Effective September 30, 2005,
ATCO Power entered into an indemnity agreement with Brighton Beach Power Ltd. obligating it to cover any
cash shortfalls associated with clearing the construction liens registered against the project. This agreement
allowed the project to achieve financial completion under the terms of the project financing agreement. The
maximum amount of the indemnity is $20 million. Canadian Utilities Limited issued a guarantee to Brighton
Beach Power Ltd. guaranteeing the payments under the indemnity agreement. The indemnity and the guarantee
are reduced as the liens are settled.

To date, Canadian Utilities Limited has not been required to pay any of its guaranteed obligations.
ATCO Midstream

Timing, capacity and demand of ATCO Midstream’s storage business as well as changes in market conditions may
impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from storage operations.

ATCO Midstream extracts ethane and other natural gas liquids from natural gas streams at its extraction plants.
These products are sold under either long term cost of service arrangements or market based arrangements. Changes
in market conditions may impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from natural gas liquids extraction
operations.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Employee Future Benefits

The expected long term rate of return on pension plan assets is determined at the beginning of the year on the basis
of the long bond yield rate at the beginning of the year plus an equity and management premium that reflects the
plan asset mix. Actual balanced fund performance over a longer period suggests that this premium is about 1%,
which, when added to the long bond yield rate of 5.9% at the beginning of 2005, resulted in an expected long term
rate of return of 6.9% for 2005. This methodology is supported by actuarial guidance on long term asset return
assumptions for the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans, taking into account asset class returns, normal
equity risk premiums, and asset diversification effect on portfolio returns.

Expected return on plan assets for the year is calculated by applying the expected long term rate of return to the
market related value of plan assets, which is the average of the market value of plan assets at the end of the
preceding three years. The expected long term rate of return has declined over the past four years, from 8.1% in
2001 to 6.9% in the nine months ended September 30, 2005. The result has been a decrease in the expected return
on plan assets and a corresponding increase in the cost of pension benefits. In addition, the actual return on plan
assets over the same period has been lower than expected (i.e., an experience loss), which is also contributing to an
increase in the cost of pension benefits as losses are amortized to earnings.

The liability discount rate that is used to calculate the cost of benefit obligations reflects market interest rates on
high quality corporate bonds that match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments. The liability discount
rate has also declined over the same four year period, from 6.9% at the end of 2001 to 5.9% at the end of 2004; the
rate has remained at 5.9% in the nine months ended September 30, 2005. The result has been an increase in benefit
obligations (i.e., an experience loss), which is contributing to an increase in the cost of pension benefits as losses are
amortized to earnings.

In accordance with the Corporation’s accounting policy to amortize cumulative experience gains and losses in
excess of 10 percent of the greater of the accrued benefit obligations or the market value of plan assets, the
Corporation began amortizing a portion of the net cumulative experience losses on plan assets and accrued benefit
obligations in 2003 for both pension benefit plans and other post employment benefit plans and continued this
amortization during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005.

The assumed annual health care cost trend rate increases used in measuring the accumulated post employment
benefit obligations in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, are as follows: for drug costs, 9.3%
starting in 2005 grading down over 8 years to 4.5%, and for other medical and dental costs, 4.0% for 2005 and
thereafter. Combined with higher claims experience, the effect of these changes has been to increase the costs of
other post employment benefits.

The effect of changes in these estimates and assumptions is mitigated by an AEUB decision to record the costs of

employee future benefits when paid rather than accrued. Therefore, a significant portion of the benefit plans
expense or income is unrecognized by the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000).

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
guideline pertaining to the consolidation of variable interest entities. The guideline requires the Corporation to
identify variable interest entities in which it has an interest, determine whether it is the primary beneficiary of such
entities, and, if so, to consolidate them. This change in accounting had no effect on the consolidated financial

statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005.

October 24, 2005
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CANADIAN UTILITIES REPORTS THIRD QUARTER EARNINGS INCREASE OF 6%

CALGARY, Alberta — Canadian Utilities Limited reported a 6% increase in earnings for the three
months ended September 30, 2005, compared to the same period in 2004.

Third quarter earnings were $46.5 million ($0.37 per share) compared to $44.0 million ($0.35 per share) for
the same period in 2004. Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, were $176.5 million ($1.39
per share) compared to $163.6 million ($1.29 per share) for the same period in 2004, excluding the $55.1
million gain from the retail sale by ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric of their energy supply businesses to Direct
Energy.

Financial Summary For the Three Months For the Nine Months
Ended September 30 Ended September 30
2005 2004 2005 2004
($ Millions except per share data)
(unaudited)
Earnings ....cocvvecviiiiiiiiininn e e e 46.5 44.0 176.5 218.7
Earnings excluding the retail sale gain .......c....coceenieinn 46.5 44.0 176.5 163.6
Earnings per Class A and B share' ..........cc.cccoovivniriinennnn, 0.37 0.35 1.39 1.73
Earnings per Class A and B share excluding retail sale gain' 0.37 0.35 1.39 1.29
REVETIUES ..eveiiieiiiiiiie e 537.4 530.5 1,835.5 2,374.4
Cash flow from operations .......cccccoveeveiinninienccei e, 135.9 128.4 471.5 373.9

1. Per share numbers have been retroactively restated to reflect two-for-one share split
Earnings for the three months ended September 30, 2005, increased primarily due to:

o the impact of the previously announced ATCO Power TXU Europe settlement and improved
performance in Alberta generating plants; and

e interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas approved by the Alberta Energy and
Utilities Board (AEUB) for 2005.

This increase was partially offset by lower volumes and higher shrinkage costs for natural gas liquids in
ATCO Midstream.

Earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, excluding the retail sale gain, increased primarily
due to:

e the impact of the ATCO Power TXU Europe settlement;
e higher earnings in ATCO Midstream; and
e increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.

This increase was partially offset by ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s higher depreciation and financing
costs related to rate base additions in late 2004 and to date in 2005 and increased operating costs.



Revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2005 increased primarily due to:

e improved performance in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations and the impact of the TXU Europe
settlement;

e interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas; and

¢ higher prices for natural gas liquids and higher storage revenues due to increased storage capacity
sold in ATCO Midstream.

This increase was partially offset by lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids
extraction in ATCO Midstream.

Revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 decreased primarily due to Direct Energy
assuming responsibility for selling natural gas and electricity to customers since the completion of the retail
sale in the second quarter of 2004.

Cash flow from operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005 increased primarily
due to increased earnings and the impact of the TXU Europe settlement in ATCO Power.

Third Quarter Other Highlights include:

e In July 2005, the Corporation’s board of directors approved a two-for-one share split of the outstanding
Class A and Class B shares. The share split took the form of a stock dividend whereby share owners
received one additional Class A share for each Class A share held as of the record date and one
additional Class B share for each Class B share held as of the record date.

e In September 2005, ATCO Power achieved financial completion under the terms of the project
financing agreement for the 580-megawatt Brighton Beach Power Plant.

e On August 2, 2005, ATCO Power received the second distribution relating to the TXU Europe
settlement. To date, the Corporation has received approximately $83.1 million of the total expected
proceeds to the Corporation of approximately $104 million.

e ATCO Travel was awarded a five-year contract to manage Suncor Energy’s business travel program.

Canadian Utilities Limited’s consolidated financial statements and management’s discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, are now
available on Canadian Utilities’ website (www.canadian-utilities.com) or via SEDAR (www.sedar.com) or
can be requested from the company.

The consolidated financial statements and management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and
results of operations will be mailed to those share owners who have requested such information on or about
October 28, 2005.

Canadian Utilities Limited is a part of the ATCO Group of companies. ATCO Group is an Alberta based,
worldwide organization of companies with more than 7,000 employees actively engaged in Power Generation,
Utilities and Global Enterprises. More information about Canadian Utilities can be found on its website,
www.canadian-utilities.com.

For further information contact:

K.M. (Karen) Watson
Senior Vice President

& Chief Financial Officer
Canadian Utilities Limited
(403) 292-7502



